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Questions?

Members of the community who have questions 
regarding the Annual Report, or who seek further 
information regarding the finances of Council, are 
encouraged to contact the General Manager, Cor-
porate and Community Services at the Principal 
Office during business hours, via the website, or 
via email. 

Principal Office:                   
                              2a Wasleys Road 
                               Mallala SA  5502 
Telephone:                                    08 8527 0200 
Website:                              www.mallala.sa.gov.au 
Email:         info@mallala.sa.gov.au 

Front Cover:             Display by local artists at the  
Two Wells Community Library 

 during the SALA Festival 
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District Council of Mallala 

Area of Council: 926.7sq km 

Number of Rateable Assessments: 4,437 

Number of Electors: 5,572        

Total Population: 8,365 

 

Council Principal Office

2a Wasleys Road, Mallala SA 5502 

Office Hours:    9am to 5pm Monday to Friday (excl Public Holidays) 

Telephone:  8527 0200     

Fax:   8527 2242       

Postal Address: PO Box 18, Mallala SA 5502

Email Address: info@mallala.sa.gov.au 

Website Address: www.mallala.sa.gov.au  

 

Two Wells Service Centre

69 Old Port Wakefield Road, Two Wells SA 5501 

Office Hours: Monday to Friday – 9am to 5pm - Excluding Public Holidays  

Telephone:  8520 3360     

Fax:   8520 2375      

District Map - Ward Boundaries�

Council Synopsis
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Vision 

A progressive, growing community enjoying a quality lifestyle in a sustainable, rural and coastal          
environment 

Mission 

Provide a safe, healthy and sustainable environment for our growing community, business and visitors, by 
providing quality services, infrastructure and facilities 

Core Values 

The values or behaviours that Council embraces to support our Mission and guide us in achieving the Vision 
are: 

•  Leadership and Diplomacy  

 – by acting strategically and effectively managing our relationships 

•  Teamwork  

 – through unity, co-operation and support 

•  Professionalism  

 – through commitment, quality and timeliness of work delivered 

•  Honesty and Integrity  

 – building trust and loyalty with the community and within Council 

•  Respect  

 – for others, acting with humility and empathy 

•  Innovative and Open-Minded  

– being proactive in continually improving our services 

Vision, Mission and Values�
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The District is made up of approximately 926km2 covering an area that is predominately rural with a 
large tidal coastal region facing the Gulf of St Vincent. The District borders the City of Playford in the 
South, Wakefield Regional Council in the North and the Light Regional Council to the East. 

The main townships within the District are Two Wells, Mallala and Dublin with coastal settlements at 
Middle Beach, Thompson Beach and Parham. Within these coastal settlements you will find pristine, 
sensitive tidal flats famous for its blue crabs and a place to find some interesting and unique vehicles 
called 'jinkers' that locals use to get there boats out to the deeper water. In land you will find some 
beautiful natural assets like our Rockies Reserve which is a permanent water source forming part of the 
Light River and is a great place to visit and enjoy the natural setting. 

The District also encompasses Lewiston which is one of the major population areas. Within Lewiston 
you will find the Rural Living (Animal Husbandry Zone) where residents are able to participate in the 
breeding of animals, with a particular focus on dogs and horses. 

The District now has approximately 8,500 residents, with major growth predicted in the next 5 to 20 
years and in line with the Greater Adelaide 30 year plan. 

The District is home to some key industries, including the successful D'Vine Ripe tomatoes producer at 
Two Wells and engineering firm Sharman’s, which provides silos to many of the State's farming enti-
ties. The area is also home to a number of agricultural pursuits such as wheat, barley, canola, lucerne 
and hay production.  

As a floodplain, the District is dissected by the Light and Gawler Rivers. A look at our logo shows the 
two rivers in blue amongst the green and yellow reflecting the rural landscape. 

The District is only a short 50 minute trip from the Adelaide CBD which brings with it enormous poten-
tial for growth. This potential has been identified in the State's 30 year Plan for Greater Adelaide with 
the challenge for the Council and the community to manage this growth in a sustainable manner, whilst 
protecting the rural character of the District. 

Executive Summary�
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The Council continues to strive to improve its overall performance within a challenging environment, 

which is also rewarding to the community when delivered successfully and sustainably. The chal-

lenges are predominately brought about with a predicted high level of growth that brings with it a 

high level of expectations. 

In the review and development of its 2011/12 program Council faced a number of competing priori-

ties. Through a robust process engaging community members Council approved a budget of $8.8 

million in operating expenditure and a capital budget of $4.2million  

The Council also embarked on a review of its organisational structure that saw its senior manage-

ment level streamlined from four (4) managers to two (2) general managers reporting to the Chief 

Executive Officer. The restructure focused on aligning functions, responsibility and accountability to 

the Strategic Plan Framework of Community Development, Economic Development, Natural & Built 

Environment and Governance and Organisation. 

Further Council also reviewed its decision making framework to align with its Strategic Plan. As part 

of this process a review of Section 41 committees was completed. This resulted in the streamlining 

of Section 41 committees to ensure the focus is on delivering the overall Council vision to be— 

‘A progressive growing community enjoying a quality lifestyle in a sustainable rural and coastal en-

vironment’ 

Council continues to support existing committees establish themselves as Incorporated organisa-

tions to continue delivering the excellent work they do for their respective communities. Council 

also created four (4) new committees that covered the Strategic Plan Framework. These commit-

tees are predominately made up of community members that will bring their expertise and views on 

how Council can deliver on its Vision, Goals and Objectives. 

Overall the restructure of the organisation and its new decision making structure will ensure the 

Council can deliver improved services to its community.  

During 2011/12 Council also embarked on a number of key projects summarized below: 

Community Development 

Completed construction of the Lewiston Playground 

Continued detailed investigations and discussions on infrastructure requirements associated with 

the Two Wells Development 

Actively participated and coordinated youth, volunteer and art programs and events. 

Economic Development 

Continued to work with relevant stakeholders to promote the area as a key horticultural destination 

and the requirement for more enhanced infrastructure to support existing and potential business 

activities 

Established the Economic Development Advisory Committee focussed on enhancing economic 

growth within the District 

Commenced the Strategic Directions Report which will identify and prioritise appropriate initiatives 

to enhance economic growth. 

The Year in Review
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Natural and Built Environment 

Finalised draft plans for the Mallala Community Waste-Water Management System (CWMS) in 

preparation for community consultation 

Delivered Council’s sealing and road maintenance program 

Finalised the Coastal Access Strategy and commenced its implementation 

Undertook extensive flood modelling of the Light River allowing sound decision making in regard to 

development in affected areas 

Increased investment in Council owned and controlled community buildings. 

Governance and Organisation 

Progressed development of the Mallala Depot Redevelopment 

Continued enhancing Record Management practices 

Reviewed and delivered the new organisational structure, enhancing service delivery 

Identified ‘in principle’ support to investigate the future administration strategy for Council’s    

Principal Office. 
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Mayor  

Cr Marcus Strudwicke 
4 Dublin Road 
Mallala SA 5502 

mstrudwicke@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  

Dublin Ward 
Cr Steve Jones  
C/- Post Office   
Lower Light SA 5502 

sjones@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  
 
Cr Terry-Anne Keen 
PO Box 118 
Dublin SA 5502 

tkeen@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  

 

Lewiston Ward 
Cr Duncan Kennington 
290 Hayman Road 
Lewiston SA 5501 

dkennington@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  
 
Cr Karen McColl  
45 Aunger Road       
Lewiston SA 5501 

kmccoll@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  
       
Cr Anne Picard 
Po Box 581 
Virginia SA 5120 

dcmallala.anne@gmail.com  
 
Cr Tom Summerton 
1 Aunger Road 
Lewiston  SA  5501 

tsummerton@dcmallala.sa.gov.au 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Deputy Mayor
Cr Duncan Kennington 
290 Hayman Road 
Lewiston SA 5501 

dkennington@dcmallala.sa.gov.au

Mallala Ward 
Cr Yvonne Howard 
3 Irish Street 

 Mallala SA 5502 

 yhoward@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  
  
 Cr Marcus Strudwicke 

4 Dublin Road 
Mallala SA 5502 

mstrudwicke@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  

Two Wells Ward 
Cr Joe Daniele  
8 Old Port Wakefield Road   

 Two Wells SA 5501 

 jdaniele@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  
  
 Cr Jan Heley  
 PO Box 779 
 Two Wells SA 5501 

 jheley@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  
  
 Cr Mark Wasley  
 Lot 414 Gordon Road 
 Two Wells SA 5501 
 mwasley@dcmallala.sa.gov.au  

Elected Members
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Elected Member
Ordinary�
Meeting

Special       
Meeting

Strategic  
Infrastructure 

& Planning

Strategic     
Community & 
Governance  

Total

Cr Daniele 12 5 11 10 38/38

Cr Heley 12 5 9 9 35/38

Cr Howard 11 5 10 10 36/38

Cr Jones 11 4 8 5 28/38

Cr Keen 09 4 6 4 23/38

Cr Kennington 11 3 6 6 26/38

Cr McColl 12 2 7 7 28/38

Cr Picard 11 4 7 6 28/38

Cr Strudwicke 11 5 11 10 37/38

Cr Summerton 11 5 11 9 36/38

Cr Wasley 12 5 11 7 35/38

Elected Members Meeting Attendance

During the 2011-2012 period Council undertook a range of legislative and procedural training, this 
included a continuation of Council’s partnership with the Light Regional Council and Norman Water-
house Lawyers to provide specific training in respect to Elected Members, their roles and the legisla-
tive requirements of Council.  
Members undertook training and development in areas such as, but not limited to: 

Codes, Policies, Procedures and Reports, 

Asset and Land Management, 

Financial Management & Responsibilities, 

Meeting Procedures, 

Meeting Procedures / Chairing (LGA), 

Public Health Act  (Wallmans Lawyers), 

Managing Conflict (LGA), and 

Council  Members – Strategic Issues (LGA) 
Induction and training is now an integral part of Elected Members development, ensuring they have 
the tools to adequately perform their roles. 
Elected Members also participated in an organisation wide Cultural Review which was conducted by 
external organisation, mjrecruit. This involved Elected Members being involved in a series of inter-
views and workshops focusing on the core values and ethics of Council and, in particular, their inter-
action with each other and employees. Recommendations and associated actions were still being re-
viewed and implemented at the conclusion of the 2011-2012 period. 

Training and Development Activities
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Re-imbursement of Expenses, Facilities and Support

The District Council of Mallala ensures that the reimbursement of expenses and the provision of al-

lowances, facilities and support to the Elected Members is accountable, transparent and in accor-

dance with the Local Government Act 1999 and associated regulations. 

Allowances

Section 76 of the Local Government Act 1999 and Regulation 4 prescribe that all Elected Members 

are entitled to receive an allowance. The Council, within the limits imposed by the Regulations, pro-

vides this allowance annually. The allowance is to help Elected Members cover the cost of perform-

ing and discharging their official functions and duties. 

Elected Members Expenses and Allowances

Payments made to Councillors     

Total payments made to Councillors for the period 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012 are as follows:  

Cr S M Strudwicke  Cr Y L Howard  

Allowance  $33,605.00 Allowance  $10,501.75 

Travel Reimbursement Nil Claimed Travel Reimbursement Nil Claimed 

Total payments for 2011-12 $33,605.00 Total payments for 2011-12 $10,501.00 

    

Cr T A Keen  Cr S E Jones  

Allowance  $8,401.25 Allowance  $8,401.25 

Travel Reimbursement Nil Claimed Travel Reimbursement $1,230.25 

Total payments for 2011-12 $8,401.25 Total payments for 2011-12 $9,632.00 

    

Cr A Picard  Cr B J Summerton  

Allowance  $8,401.25 Allowance  $6,500.00

Travel Reimbursement $1,844.27 Travel Reimbursement $1,212.00

Total payments for 2011-12 $10,245.52 Total payments for 2011-12 $7,712.00

    

Position Allowance 

July 2010 to June 2011 

Allowance 

July 2011 to June 2012 

Mayor $   27,00.00 $  3,605.00 

Deputy Mayor 9,375.00 
$10,001.75

Elected members $6,250.00 $ 8,401.25 
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Elected Members
Cr J Daniele  Cr  J M Heley  

Allowance $8,401.25 Allowance $8,401.25

Travel Reimbursement $815.48 Travel Reimbursement $1,197.00

Total payments for 2011-12 $9,216.73 Total payments for 2011-12 $9,598.25

Cr M N Wasley  Cr D Kennington  

Allowance $8,901.25 Allowance $10,001.75

Travel Reimbursement $105.00 Travel Reimbursement $1,913.30

Total payments for 2011-12 $9,006.25 Total payments for 2011-12 $11,915.05

Cr K M McColl   

Allowance $8,401.25

Travel Reimbursement $2,227.06

Total payments for 2011-12 $10,628.31

Total payments to Councillors for 2011-2012: $130,461.36
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Chief Executive Officer 

Charles Mansueto 

Salary: $ 154,630 (Contract) 

9% Superannuation 

Fully maintained and Use of Motor Vehicle, Mobile Phone & i-pad  
 
 
 

General Manager, Corporate & Community Services 

Peter Sellar  

Salary: $ 119,600 (Contract) 

9% Superannuation  

Fully maintained and Use of Motor Vehicle, Mobile Phone & i-pad  

  

General Manager, Infrastructure & Planning Services

Gary Mavrinac 

Salary: $ 125,000 (Contract)  

Commenced: 16th April 2012  

9% Superannuation  

Fully maintained and Use of Motor Vehicle, Mobile Phone & i-pad  
 

NB:   Henri Mueller, Manager, Environment and Development Services (Contract Salary - $ 96,430), 
resigned on 15 July 2011 and Harry Pitrans was employed as General Manager, Infrastructure 
and Planning Services (Contract Salary - $ 120,000) until 13 April 2012.

 

 

Senior Management 
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Mollie Frost accepting her award from
Council Mayor, Marcus Strudwicke 

Community Development 

KEY COMMUNITY SERVICES

� Communication and Marketing                 �  Community Development      �  Funding                                 

� Community and Sporting Groups             �  Information and Support       �  Library Services                      

� Community Engagement and Education   �  Museum and History              �  Volunteer Services      

CELEBRATIONS AND EVENTS

Australia Day Celebrations 

A successful event was held at the Dublin oval 

with more than 150 in attendance. Awards 

were presented to the Citizen of the Year – 

Mollie Frost; and Community Event of the Year 

– Dublin History Group, whose book launch – 

‘Memories of School’ was well received by cur-

rent and past residents of the district.  

Two new awards were introduced - Community 

Group of the Year and Community Project of 

the year. The inaugural winner of the Commu-

nity Group of the Year was the Two Wells Ten-

nis Club for their work in reviving tennis in the 

town, upgrading equipment and repaying an 

outstanding loan to Council.  

Citizenship

Council held several successful Citizenship 

Ceremonies with 13 residents taking the op-

portunity to become Citizens of Australia. Six 

of these were naturalised at the Australia Day 

Event.  

The Citizen of the Year forms were upgraded, 

making them uniform across the state and 

enabling on-line completion of forms. 

Anzac Day and Remembrance Day 

Council participated in both Anzac Day and 

Remembrance Day, providing wreaths for ser-

vices at both Two Wells and Mallala. The 

Mayor, Deputy Mayor and CEO all attending 

events held in the district.  
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Fun in the Sun 

Natural Resources Management Staff, supported by Community 

Services staff held a well supported ‘fun in the sun’ children’s 

event on Australia Day at Pt Parham. Children were informed 

about coastal marine life and the importance of preserving the 

environment to ensure future generations would continue to en-

joy the coast and its species. 

Town Christmas Parades 

Council had a presence at both the Two Wells and Mallala Christ-

mas parades, hosting information stalls with staff on hand to 

answer questions about Council and to provide information.  

Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Projects – 

RLCIP—Official Opening  

Official opening events were held for the Dublin and Lewiston 

Playgrounds and the Two Wells Institute. Nick Champion at-

tended the Dublin and Lewiston Playgrounds giving a short 

speech at both. A representative for Nick attended the library 

opening, highlighting the benefits to the community and the 

continued use of this historical building.  

The first female president of the Two Wells Institute Committee 

(1977), Mrs Pat Seccafien, attended, along with several life, 

members of that Committee. The improvements to the building 

and in particular, the upgrade to the stage area was well re-

ceived.  

Volunteer Recognition Event 

A ‘thank you’ event was held for volunteers of all Section 41 

community committees which have now closed. Around 60 vol-

unteers attended a supper held at the Pt Parham Sports & Social 

club, where they each received a native seedling from Council in 

recognition of their services to Council’s Section 41 Committees.  

SALA Festival 2011  

Participation in the SALA Festival saw many local artists display-

ing their talent with the ‘First Glimpse’ exhibition held in the Two 

Wells Public Library, Mallala Library, Two Wells Service Centre 

and Mallala Council reception office. 

Thirteen local artists displayed in excess of 24 pieces of art at 

the exhibition, which was well received by the public and artists 

alike. 

Bloomsday Event 

Council supported the Dublin History Group to bring a 

‘Bloomsday’ Event to Dublin, by linking the event with South 

Australian Tourism Commission through Yorke Peninsula Tour-

ism. The event was placed on You-Tube, providing exposure for 

the district.  
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Emu Awards 

In collaboration with Wakefield Regional Council, the District Council of Mallala once again sup-

ported the Adelaide Plains ‘Emu Awards’ with a breakfast held at Balaklava Golf Club. Award pa-

tron, Peter Goers, provided an entertaining speech, with awards presented to category winners for 

Individual, Community Group, Business and Event. This year’s major winner was Michelle Dohnt 

from Snowtown for her work with the Snowtown community.  

Clean Up Australia Day 

Support provided to community groups and organisations participating in ‘Clean Up’ Australia Day.  

Volunteer Week 2012  

The District Council of Mallala was proud to be able to show its appreciation to the Volunteers in 

our area, who make it such a great place to live – by providing a free movie day at Gawler Cinema 

on Monday 14 May 2012. Approximately 60 volunteers were treated to morning tea, an educational 

talk and a light lunch as part of the day.  

Feedback from volunteers attending the day was extremely positive and volunteers unable to at-

tend were equally vocal in their appreciation of Council’s recognition of their contribution to the 

Community. 

GRANT FUNDING

Information on funding opportunities available through State and Federal Government grants was 

provided to local community groups with staff assisting community groups in their applications for 

funding. Funding applications to sources outside of Council has increased, with many successful 

outcomes.  This has reduced the reliance on Council for financial support, as well as empowering 

local community groups to upgrade their resources. 

Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Projects (RLCIP) 

Council received Federal funding though the Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Funding 

Program (RLCIP) Round 3 with $21,000 for Dublin playground and $58,000 funding towards the 

Two Wells Library structural upgrade. Council applied for and received a further $10,000 funding 

from the State Government Heritage Fund towards the upgrade. 

Reporting obligations for RLCIP Round 3—Funding and Heritage SA were met. 

Photographic Competition 

In early 2012, to celebrate the National Year of Reading, the District Council of Mallala Library and 

Community Services combined to hold a photography competition for local amateur photographers.  

With the themes of ‘Caught in the Act of Reading’ and ‘Essentially Adelaide Plains – 14 photogra-

phers entered 21 photos for judgement. 

Prizes were awarded for 1st, 2nd and 3rd place in the open category for over 18 year olds, a 12-18 

year old category, under 12 year old category and a People’s Choice category.  Winners were 

awarded their prizes by Mayor Strudwicke at a Morning Tea celebration held at the Two Wells Pub-

lic Library. 

The winning photo in the Photographic Competition – “Kelpies – Aussie Workaholics” by Pat Wake. 
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Section 41 Committees 

2011 saw the end of the Community Partnerships Committee and the Community Development 

Board and 2012 saw the commencement of the Community Development & Advisory Committee. 

The committee continues to oversee the Community Bus, Community Directory, and Community 

Partnerships Fund and intends to support the profile of the community.  

The Community Partnerships Fund received an overhaul with new guidelines and application forms 

developed, enabling on-line completion of application forms. Individual Sports & Cultural Funding 

was expended in record time, with all funding allocated within 1 month of funding opening. The 

committee resolved to provide further funding after the Community Partnerships Funds had been 

allocated, on the provision there were sufficient funds to support this.  

The Mallala & Districts Homes Committee developed a MOU between District Council of Mallala and 

Barossa & Districts Housing Association (BDHA) for Unit 2/7 Chivell Street, Mallala. BDHA will 

manage the unit, with DCM retaining ownership of the property. A staff member from DCM holds a 

current position on the Board of BDHA. 

Administration support is provided to Section 41 committees.  

Training 

Council Staff have attended various training forums and workshops relevant to furthering the pro-

fessionalism of Council Volunteer Management. 

This includes training in such areas as the proposed new OHS&W laws and their effect on volun-

teers; and the Volunteer Squared Database. 

Community Transport 

In addition to the Community Monthly Shopping Bus, Council contributes funding to the Mid North 

Community Passenger Transport Network who provides medical transport services for the resi-

dents of Council.  

Staff

Angela Nicklin commenced in January 2012 for a 12 month period whilst an existing staff member 

takes maternity leave. 

Tourism 

The District Council of Mallala continues to support tourism through the retention of the Visitor In-

formation outlet based at the Two Wells Service Centre. Statistics are kept of visitors to the area 

to enable staff to provide feedback to the South 

Australian Tourism Committee. 

The District Council of Mallala is situated in the 

Clare Valley Tourism Region and is also aligned 

with Yorke Regional Tourism (from Highway1 - 

west to the coast) and is currently investigating 

tourism opportunities in collaboration with RDA 

Barossa. 

Two Wells Service Centre
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Mallala Library 

Library Services 

The District Council of Mallala’s Library Service has 

continued to be well patronised.  The Council main-

tains three (3) service branches; the main library site 

is located at Two Wells (open 5 days a week for 28.5 

hours), a smaller branch is based in the Mallala Coun-

cil building (open 2 half days per week for 4 hours) 

and there is a outlet at the Windsor Institute (open 

every Sunday morning for one and half hours).  

There are just over 1,600 registered library patrons 

and almost 90% of our borrowers reside in the Coun-

cil area.  Council employs 2.3 library staff, as well as 

sharing casual library officers with the Town of Gawler 

to cover staff absences.  Library volunteers play a 

significant role in supporting staff – the Windsor 

branch is opened every Sunday morning by a dedi-

cated local resident and the Two Wells Library is 

regularly assisted by volunteers.   

The Libraries currently stock a combined total of 

18,320 items which includes 11,246 adult resources, 

5,945 children’s materials and 1,129 ‘other’ items 

which are predominantly magazines.  Library staff 

select stock throughout the year to cater for the com-

munity’s diverse recreational and educational needs.  

During the 2011/2012 financial year 22,109 items 

were loaned to library patrons.  Library staff also ac-

cessed the resources of the State’s Public Library Net-

work and 670 items from other public libraries were 

made available to our borrowers. 

Library patrons who have Internet access at home are 

able to view the Mallala Library catalogue at http://

mallala.spydus.com.  Demand for access to the Li-

brary’s Internet and word processing remains very 

high on the personal computers available – three at 

the Two Wells Library and one at the Mallala Library.  

Access to Wireless Internet at the Library also contin-

ues to be in high demand.  

New circulation desk installed at Two Wells Library
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Two Wells Library Renovations 

Mallala Council was fortunate to receive a $58,000 Federal Government Grant from the Regional and 

Local Community Infrastructure Program as well as $10,000 from the State Government’s Depart-

ment for Environment and Heritage to renovate the State Heritage listed Library building.   

The scope of the works included a salt damp course and repairs from previous salt damp course 

works, the repair and repainting of both internal and external cracks, repairing the rear wall, the 

complete upgrade of the stage area including sand back the floorboards, the removal of bricked up 

windows which were replaced with new windows and repainting chimneys.  Council’s Paul Cleghorn, 

Strategic Infrastructure Coordinator was the project manager.  Whilst this project was undertaken, 

the Library was temporarily housed at the Old Two Wells Council Chamber. 

The Two Wells Public Library was officially reopened on Monday, January 30 2012.  Nick Champion 

MP, Federal Member for Wakefield, was scheduled to open the Library but, as he was unable to at-

tend at the last minute, one of his staff representatives officiated in his absence.   

Representing Leesa Vlahos MP, State Member for Taylor, was Julie Woodman.  Past Institute Com-

mittee members, Council representatives and dignitaries as well as officials from Heritage Conserva-

tion and the Department for Environment and Heritage were present at the opening ceremony. 

Events and Programs 

The Mallala Library service continued to conduct various programs throughout the year which in-

cluded: 

Storytelling/ library tours for local schools and preschool centres. 

The Premier’s Reading Challenge – which is a State wide challenge for students from Reception Class 

to Year 9 to read 12 books annually.  Students receive an incentive medal each year for completing 

the challenge and this program, which was introduced in 2004, continues to be very popular. 

Tax Help@ the Library – this is a free service run by the Australian Tax and is open to individual tax-

payers who need assistance to lodge a tax return or form. 

Caroline Overington (pictured at right) Literary event – in late October 2011 the Two Wells Public 

Library hosted the Australian author, who was promoting her latest novel ‘Matilda is Missing’.  

Salvation Army Christmas Appeal @ Your Library – Library and Council staff continued to support the 

Salvation Army Christmas Appeal in December with the donation of non perishable food items and 

gifts. 

Summer Reading Program entitled ‘The Amazing Race’.  On February 14 2012 Mayor Marcus 

Strudwicke presented 24 participants with certificates and a book in recognition of their reading ef-

forts at an afternoon tea ceremony in the Two Wells Library. Twenty seven children entered the com-

petition this year and over the summer school holidays over 280 books were read between all the 

children. 

The ‘National Year of Reading 2012’ aims for all Australians to understand the benefits of reading as 

a life long skill, as well as promoting a ‘reading culture’ in every home and to encourage families to 

share books with their children.   

SA History Week celebrations – local history buffs enjoyed viewing some of the highlights of the Mal-

lala area including the D’Vineripe factory, Lewiston, the Two Wells Sports Club and Middle Beach on 

Wednesday, 16 May 2012. 

Local Two Wells resident, Peter Belcher, launched his debut novel entitled ‘A Peasant’s Journey’ at 

the Two Wells RSL on Thursday, 31 May 2012. 
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Staff 

In May 2012 Anne Sawtell was appointed Library Services Co-ordinator, replacing Kimberley Har-

grave who resigned in March 2012. 

During the twelve months to June 2012, Library staff attended various training forums and work-

shops to extend their professional development, including ‘Child Safe Environments – Reporting Child 

Abuse and Neglect’.  

Before and after photos of the                              
Two Wells Library renovations 
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Key Infrastructure & Planning Services 
� Animal Management & Dog Control  � Asset Management         � Depot Operations 
� Buildings & Facilities Management       � Engineering Services      � Fire Prevention 
� Public Health & Food Administration   � General Inspections        � Roads Services 
� Planning & Building Compliance      � Horticulture Services      � Land Use Planning 
� Community Infrastructure � Open Space Planning     � Waste Management  
� Environmental Management � Development Assessment                  
 
Asset Management 

Rural Addressing Rollout 

Mallala District Council has sup-
ported the rural addressing system 
and has now completed the instal-
lation of over 850 posts for every 
rural occupied home and busi-
nesses identified at a cost of 
$28,000. The general purpose for 
the implementation of the number-
ing system is a joint State and Lo-
cal Government initiative aimed to 
provide all occupied rural properties 
in South Australia - home and busi-
ness - with a nationally consistent 
numbered address. 

Many properties are currently lo-
cated on un-named roads, requiring 
the property owner to rely on local 

knowledge and reference points among emergency services personnel (and service providers like 
vets and livestock officers) friends and family to find their property. Descriptions of property loca-
tion are often confusing, leading to time loss and frustration. 

The aim of rural property addressing is to stop confusion and ambiguity.  This initiative provides a 
distance-based road number (based on the national standard) for the road access point to occu-
pied properties to assist emergency services and other service providers to find homes and busi-
nesses in regional South Australia with certainty, quickly and easily. 

A rural property address consists of the distance based road number, road name, locality and 
postcode. 

Letters were sent to effected properties with instructions on how the new system affects property 
and the opportunity to inform council of any queries regarding the new numbering system. For 
further information regarding Rural Addressing there is a link on Council’s website: 
www.mallala.sa.gov.au 

 

Natural and Built Environment 
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Facilities Asbestos Removal Program 

District Council of Mallala has carried out asbestos removal and replacement to buildings across the 

district. This is part of a continuing program to remove and 

replace all asbestos materials from council owned buildings 

including public amenities. The cost incurred for the re-

moval and replacements was $30,000. 

The buildings and public amenities projects included in 
2011-2012: 

Mallala Institute – ceiling and other wall panels 

Mallala CWA - ceiling 

Parham Amenities – roof structure total replacement 

with colour bond roofing 

Middle Beach Amenities – roof structure total replace-

ment with Colorbond roofing 

Webb Beach – roof structure total replacement with Colorbond roofing.

Two Wells Library – Renovations 

The Two Wells Library reopened its doors in October 2011 after undergoing extensive restoration 
and maintenance work, thanks to successful applications by Council for grant funding from both the 
Federal and State Governments. Council received $58,000 from the Regional and Local Community 
Infrastructure Program, $10,000 from the South Australian Heritage Fund, with additional funds 
allocated from Council in the 2011/12 budget. 

During the restoration period, the library relocated next door to 
the old Port Gawler Council Chambers, operating a modified ser-
vice to patrons. 

Constructed in 1877, the Institute was described as a 
‘substantial and imposing building constructed of limestone with 
brick facings and which could comfortably seat 500 persons. At 
either side of the entrance doors are two lofty rooms, with the 
intention to use one of these rooms as a library’.* The building 
was confirmed as a ‘State Heritage Place’ in August 1993 and, 
after closing as a public institute in 1984, was managed by a 

small community group until Council regained management in 2006. The building was refurbished 
and reopened in February 2007 as a public library. 

A report on the building in 2010 found that although the building was considered to be structurally 

sound there was cracking to external walls, particularly around 

windows with major cracking present internally at the rear of the 

building. Walls had moved and stairs at the rear were badly de-

teriorated as a result of stormwater management. Funding was 

used to repair and repaint interior cracking, repaint external 

window frames, repair salt damp including previous treatment 

holes, repair and replace damaged and missing cornice and 

skirtings, remove and replace damaged external bricks, remove 

and replace old render and external vents and reappoint the 

stonework. Stairs at the rear of the building have been restored, 

and the single rear window has been duplicated and restored to its near former glory.  

Photos Above and Left: Two Wells Library (front and rear) 

Asbestos Removal
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Community FloodSafe Program 

Community FloodSafe is modelled on the successful NSW SES program of the same name and is a 
partnership between local councils and State and Federal Governments. Flood mapping has high-
lighted the flood-prone areas and each council has nominated the key areas for FloodSafe to target. 
By working with local communities, the SES volunteers will become more familiar with local flood-
prone areas and the residents who may need help in storms or floods.  

It began in SA with a pilot program in early 2009 focusing on the southern metropolitan councils. In 
2009-10 the program is being expanded to northern metropolitan council areas and close rural ar-
eas. The Bureau of Meteorology (BOM) and the Department for Water are also partners in the SA 
program alongside SES and the Councils of the southern and northern metropolitan area. 

The FloodSafe program is funded by the Department for Water, the Adelaide and Mount Lofty 
Ranges Natural Resource Management Board, and local funding from councils including Adelaide, 
Mitcham, Marion, Unley, Holdfast Bay and West Torrens. The key creek systems in the first year of 
the program include Brown Hill, Keswick, Sturt, Chamber, Minno and the Patawalunga.  

From 2009-10 northern waterways including Dry Creek, Gawler, Light, Little Para, North and South 
Para, Torrens and the Port Adelaide waterways will be added.  

The first northern councils to join in 2009-2010 were Barossa Council, the City of Port Adelaide En-
field and the District Council of Mallala. Port Adelaide Enfield and Mallala have significant tidal inun-
dation and storm surge issues along their coast and this broadens the flood risk issues of FloodSafe. 

Adelaide Hills, Onkaparinga and the Clare and Gilbert Valley Councils joined the program in 2011-
2012, 

The FloodSafe program uses existing State Emergency Service volunteers, as well as new commu-
nity volunteers with good presentation skills, to reach into communities to raise awareness in flood-
prone areas. Initiatives include articles in Council newsletters, street corner meetings, community 
group meetings, internet sites, brochures and school education. The focus will be risk, conse-
quences and self-help. 

The volunteers talk to community groups, local residents, businesses and schools about what they 
can do reduce the risk of flood damage and improve the resilience of their community if a flood 
should occur. 

The FloodSafe volunteers will address communities on: 

�� local risks  

�� historic flooding in the area  

�� having a flood plan to reduce the risk to business equipment, stock and staff  

�� protecting your family and property  

�� understanding BOM Flood Watch and Flood warnings  

�� having a home emergency kit  

�� how to call for SES response.  

Community volunteers are being sought to join the FloodSafe program. People with good presenta-

tion or teaching skills can be part of the teams going into local communities with the FloodSafe 

message. Fifty SES Volunteers from units across the state trained and are preparing a busy sched-

ule of events each month in the funding council areas. 

SES Volunteers handed out many flood packs and discussed valuable information to the community 

in various locations during the year Parham, Webb Beach, Middle Beach and attended the local foot-

ball at Mallala and Two Wells. There was a very positive response from many community members 

on how they could better protect there properties in such an event of inundation. District Council of 

Mallala provide $5,000 to support the Floodsafe Program to continue the education and advise to 

the community’s.  
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The Depot Operations provide construction, maintenance and management of the following key  

services.  

�� transport facilities (roads, bridges, storm water systems, and footpaths) 

�� quarry operations 

�� parks, ovals, gardens, reserves, street scapes and roadside vegetation 

�� flood mitigating. (coastal and flood plain locations) 

�� cemetery operations 

�� waste Collection / transfer stations / roadside dumping 

�� public conveniences 

�� engineering assessment of development applications 

�� plant and depot operation. 

�� These services are provided by the following work groups: 

�� Construction/Maintenance (Senior Civil Officer with 9.5 Operators / Drivers / Construction 

workers). 

�� Waste Services (Senior waste Officer and 2.5 drivers/waste officers) 

�� Horticulture Services – (Senior Horticulture Officer + 4 Horticulturists) 

�� Workshop/General Maintenance - (Senior Workshop Officer + 1 general maintenance 

worker). 

As part of Council’s plant replacement program, the following major equipment was purchased dur-

ing 2011/12: 

12M Caterpillar grader (replaces 140H construction grader) 

644K John Deere loader (replaced 950G loader) 

plant trailer (replaced failed bobcat plant trailer) 

tray mounted spray unit (replaced old tray mount unit) 

4 × 4 tray top utility (spray unit) 

Mallala Oval Practice Cricket Netting Renewal 

Following the Club’s upgrade of the pitches, 

the District Council of Mallala undertook the 

replacement of the netting around the prac-

tice nets to replace the old damaged net-

ting.  

Upgrading of the nets has provided a facility 
available for use by the community, visitors 
and all cricket club members for many years 
to come. should note that the club upgraded the 
pitches. 

The total costs for this project $7,135.00. 

 

 

Depot Operations 

Mallala Oval Cricket Nets 
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Major Projects 

Major projects included: 

��construction and sealing 

�� 1km Bailey Road West Two Wells (Highway to 

Buckland Park Road) 

�� 750 metres of the Garden Avenue Two Wells 

(Bailey Rd. East to end)  

�� 1.5 km. of Gawler River Road  Lewiston 

( Boundary Rd end and Judd Rd. end) 

�� intersection Realignment at Williams Road 

Gawler Road Two Wells 

�� intersection Realignment at Germantown Road 

Dawkins Road Two Wells 

��paving at First Street, Dublin and Redbanks Road, 

Mallala 

��rail pedestrian crossing Gawler Road Two Wells 

(to be completed 2012-2013) 

��Aunger/Gawler Road intersection lighting up-

grade. 

Major maintenance programs and works included: 

��extensive patrol grading of the district’s 795 kilo-

metres of unsealed roads 

��resealing and widening of Dawkins Road – (Old 

Port Wakefield road to Pederick Road) Two Wells 

��resealing 1.6 km Ruskin Road – (South terrace to 

west of Bubner road) Dublin 

��re sheeting (new wear course of 100mm of 

crushed limestone) 20.2 km of unsealed roads; 

Long Plains: Ridley, Ryan and Hallion Roads 

Calomba: Broster and Davies Roads 

Two Wells: Horseshoe Crescent 

Reeves Plains: Richter and Verner Roads 

��Limerock Road Landfill Closure Plan earthworks 

(clay capping and shaping of the site) 

��temporary depot relocation and set up for the du-

ration of the new depot construction 

��installation of a large number of road signs to im-

prove information for the community, or to re-

place signs that were no longer serviceable or 

were damaged or stolen by vandals. 

Gawler Road-Rail Pedestrian Crossing

Dawkins Road-Shoulder Widening and 
Reseal

Williams Road re-alignment



District Council of Mallala 25

The Horticulture section has grown in the past 12 months and now has a total of five officers (one 

Senior Horticulture Officer, three Horticulture Officers and one Trainee Horticulture Officer). 

The District Council of Mallala has formed a relationship with the Department of Correctional Ser-

vices (Re-Pay SA) in providing a once a week commitment with persons to perform community 

service. This group has performed many duties including: removal of old fences throughout the 

district, weed control, spreading of mulch and many more tasks that would not be achievable with-

out their help. 

The team has been very busy clearing the vegetation from the drainage system throughout Lewis-

ton and are now in the process of being sprayed. 

Historic Wells 

The Historic Wells area is in the throws of having a ‘face lift’. The area has seen the removal of the 

Aboriginal statues from the Pudnarla Food and Medicine Trail and placed in their new home at the 

Wells. Over grown shrubs trees have been either removed or pruned to allow for a more visible 

area. The paving is currently under going re-laying to replace broken pavers and improve safety 

for all who visit. 

Dublin Playground 

In the second half of last year Dublin playground was upgraded with a new piece of equipment 

(bull rider), rubberised soft fall and shade structure. Total cost of the project $29,000. Also a new 

section of fence along South Terrace was installed. 

Waste Services 

The District Council of Mallala operates and manages an alternating domestic waste and recycling 

collection. Residents residing in the rural living areas are provided with a 240 litre Mobile Garbage 

Bins (MGB) for recycling purposes. Residents residing in the townships of Mallala, Two Wells and 

Dublin are provided with a 240 litre MGB for dry recyclables and a bench top basket for food or-

ganic composting, a 140 litre MGB is provided for residual waste.  

Council collects approximately 22MT (metric ton) of recyclables per fortnight, which equates to an 

average of 7.5 kilograms per household per week. On top of this there is also 4.76MT per fortnight 

of material incorrectly placed in bins for recycling. This represents a contamination level of 20%. 

The waste department will use these figures for bench marking and look for ways to reduce con-

tamination in recycling. 

Kerbside waste collected by Council amounts to 61MT per fortnight which equates to 21kg per 

household per fortnight. 

Council collects approximately 13MT of green waste per fortnight, this includes food organic waste. 

13MT per fortnight equates to an average 32.5 kilograms per household per fortnight 

(approximately 420 residences present organics for collection). Green waste is transported the 

Peats Soil processing facility located on Carslake Road Dublin for composting into garden products. 

Recyclables and domestic waste are transported either to the Northern Adelaide Waste Manage-

ment Authority (NAWMA) to be further sorted, or processed in preparation for sending to landfill. 

Street bin rubbish and domestic waste collected on DCM northern areas is delivered to Inkerman 

for disposal into landfill.  

Horticultural Services 
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The waste collection tonnage statistics for the reporting period are provided below: 

Waste  1,594MT* 

Recycling  576MT** 

Green waste  344MT 

Total  2,633MT 

* Amount of domestic waste increased by 9% of last years reported figures 

**  The amount of materials collected during recyclables collections was 695MT. 576MT was the 

actual amount of recyclable material collected. The recyclables contamination tonnage of 

119MT has been allocated to the waste figure of 1594MT. This may explain the 9% increase 

in the waste figure. 

Council is committed to minimising its operating costs and aims to educate residents to maxi-

mise the amount presented for the recycling collection. The waste management staff will look at 

simple ways of deterring poor recycling behaviours while encouraging good behaviours. 

Transfer Stations 

New government regulations will be enforced as of July 2013 regarding the types of waste sent 

to landfill. Materials that have been included on the list of banned materials not to be sent to 

landfill include the following (effective 1 July 2012): 

PVC or PS plastic packaging  

Fluorescent lighting  

Computer monitors and televisions  

Whole earth mover tyres  

From 1 September 2013  

Other electrical equipment. 

A review of service providers to our transfer stations is currently underway. The outcomes de-

sired will be to enter into service agreements with providers who can dispose of these materials 

in the most cost effective manner for the district. The review has already identified reasonable 

savings to be earned by negotiating of rental rates of the skips utilised at DCM transfer stations. 

Hours of operation of our transfer stations are also being reviewed with preliminary work show-

ing we served one customer per hour of operation (on average) over the past financial year. 

Illegal Dumping 

The issue of illegal dumping is a major con-

cern. The waste department is using a pro-

gram called ZEUS to record illegal dumping 

occurrences. This information may be used to 

identify ‘hot spots’ where illegal dumping oc-

curs with some regularity. ZEUS is not neces-

sary to identify all hot spots as some loca-

tions have such a regular occurrence of mate-

rial being dumped that no electronic re-

cording is really necessary to assist identify-

ing these as hot spots.  
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The waste department will look to Zero Waste SA this year to discuss what results Council may 

expect to achieve with a more aggressive approach in dealing with illegal dumpers where they 

are identified.   

Council has collected illegally dumped material from approximately 400 - 450 occurrences in the 

past year. Materials collected range in size from bags to trailer loads of domestic waste as well as 

other associated residential waste including tyres, asbestos and building materials. Illegal dump-

ing is not only limited to road verges, but also occurs on parks, reserves, and watercourses. 

The cost of illegal dumping was $107,000 for 2011-12. This figure does not take into account the 

cost to Council of disposing of dumped material through our transfer stations. 

It should also be noted that material collected by Council work crews is disposed of through our 

transfer stations and there is no cost applied to this action. The waste department will look to 

begin capturing this data during 2012-13. 

DrumMuster – AG & Vet Chemical Container Stewardship 

Council continues to participate in the DrumMuster collection program which provides an avenue 

for farm chemical metal and plastic drums to find their way back into a recyclables waste stream. 

With on-going support from the farming community, approximately 4,700 containers were col-

lected over two days and sent for recycling during the past financial year. 

E-Waste

The Federal Government has begun rolling out E-waste collections. The collections will happen in 

stages across Australia with collections hoping to be staged within or near to the council area 

prior to December 2013.  

The program has been established and supported by the Federal Government. Manufacturers and 

distributors of computers or televisions in Australia also have a stake in the program as to be 

able to sell equipment in Australia they must also contribute to the costs of operating the recy-

cling program. This specific program only facilitates the collection and recycling of televisions and 

computers or their peripherals e.g. keyboards, printers. 

Note:  

The creation of this television and computer product stewardship has led to an investigation as to 

whether a similar scheme can be successfully established for tyres. Draft plans of the tyre stew-

ardship are currently in circulation. 

Levies

An investigation into waste levies payable to the EPA for disposal of solid waste has found Council 

is no longer required to contribute directly to the EPA for disposal of solid waste. This will results 

in an annual saving of $59,745.   
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Land Use Planning 

Council is required under the Development Act 1993 to review its Development Plan so that it 
accords with the direction of the State Strategic Plan and the Planning Strategy (The 30 Year 
Plan for Greater Adelaide) for the region. The State Strategic Plan is a peak strategy document 
developed by the State Government to which all subordinate plans must link to. The Planning 
Strategy is the spatial representation of the State Strategic Plan. 

All councils are required to review their Development Plan and identify a program to make 
changes to ensure consistency with the Planning Strategy. During the year, Council commenced 
preparation of a Strategic Directions Report (former Section 30 Development Plan Review) fol-
lowing the release of The 30 Year Plan for Greater Adelaide. Council released a Technical Issues 
Paper and Discussion Sheets during the consultation period. The review is due to be completed 
by December 2012. 

During 2011-12 Council continued to progress a number of Development Plan Amendments, 
namely: 

The Mallala Township DPA that examines opportunities 
to extend zoning of residential, commercial and industrial 
areas around the township and make provision for a heavy 
vehicle by-pass around the southern side of the township. 
The DPA has been held up due to investigations associated 
with the Community Wastewater Management System. It is 
anticipated that the draft DPA will be released for public 
consultation during the first half of 2012-13. 

The Better Development Plan and General DPA, which 
is revising the Development Plan so that it accords with the 
State Government’s Planning Policy Library. 

 The changes can be summarised 
as: 

�� Updating most of the policies in 
the Council-wide section of the 
Development Plan with equiva-
lent policies developed by the 
State Government’s ‘Planning 
Policy Library’.  

�� Restructuring the zone section 
in the Development Plan to 
amalgamate selected zones and 
rename others with standardised zone titles.  

�� Reordering headings in the Council Wide section and zones in alphabetical order  

�� Correcting historical anomalies or typographical errors in existing policy and mapping  

�� Introducing colour maps and Concept Plans to replace the black-and-white maps. 

Planning and Compliance Services 
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The DPA report was released for public consultation from 3 May to 5 July 2012, with the 

intent to have the new Development Plan in place by the end of 2012, following consid-

eration of the public and agency comments. 

The Two Wells Residential DPA rezones land to accommodate future population 

growth for metropolitan Adelaide. The draft DPA was released for the statutory two 

month public consultation period that closed May 2012. Council is in the process of con-

sidering the submission, with the intent to finalise the DPA by the close of 2012. 

The Gawler River Flood Prone Area DPA had been placed on hold. The DPA was pro-

posing to introduce new flood hazard maps into the Development Plan, which provide 

more comprehensive and up-to-date information on the level of hazard for areas within 

the floodplain of the Gawler River. Given that flood mapping for Light River had been 

completed as part of the Two Wells residential development proposal, it is intended that 

during 2012-13. a new DPA will be initiated to cover both river systems. 

Coastal Management  

The Adelaide and Mount Lofty Ranges NRM Board continued to fund a Coastal, Estuary 

and Marine (CEM) Officer, which was hosted by the Mallala Council. The area covered by 

the work undertaken by the CEM Officer includes Port Gawler, Thompson Beach, Middle 

Beach, Parham, Port Prime, Buckland Park and Webb Beach. 

Planting: Site preparation for approximately 2,900 stems was planted throughout the 

coastal areas in July and August 2011, including: 

�� 500 for the Northern Shorebird Walking Trail 

�� 800 at Port Gawler 

�� 400 (including tree guards) at Parham along the foreshore 

�� 800 (including tree guards) at Port Prime in three locations 

�� 50 at Buckland Park 

�� 150 (including guards) at Webb Beach, southern end of the Esplanade. 

Various volunteer groups assisted with the revegetation of these sites and contractors 

were engaged as well. 

Fencing: Various sites had either new fencing installed or repairs completed. 

Weed Control was completed covering many sites. Species targeted include: Calomba 

Daisy, African Boxthorn, Bridal Creeper, Yellow Poppy, Stock Weed, Spiny Rush 

Signage: Various signs have been installed throughout the coastal areas and some have 

included the SAPOL logo. 

Other Activities:  

�� The CEM Officer ran a workshop on Shorebirds and Red Capped Plover at various ven-

ues,  

�� Fun in the Sun activity for Australia Day.  

�� Participated in a Saltmarsh/Samphire workshop.  

�� Survey of Tecticornia flabelliformis (Samphire species).  

�� Fauna survey for the Light River Delta. 
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Concerns/Issues: 

�� off–road vehicles and motorcycle use in sensitive coastal habitat 

�� vehicle abandonment in Samphire habitat 

�� rubbish dumping within Samphire habitat 

�� Port Prime becoming an increasing popular location for motorbikes, observable large degrada-

tion over last 12 months. 

��vandalism of fencing and signage 

The CEM Officer position became vacant in March 2012, with the incumbent returning to NSW. The 

NRM Board is seeking to continue the role and commenced advertising for the position. 

The Board has been successful in obtaining Federal funding to continue its work to protect the 

Samphire Coastline. The $2.6 million will help to rehabilitate South Australia’s remnant coastal 

corridor over the next six years. 
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Development Assessment 

The total number of development applications lodged with Council for the period was 325, which 

was slightly more than the 316 from the previous year. Accordingly, the value of development 

also increased from the previous year to a value of approximately $32.6 million.  

Most of the 325 development applications received by Council in the period were for develop-

ments approved by staff under delegated authority. These included dwellings, dwelling exten-

sions, sheds/garages, swimming pools, verandahs, carports, pergolas, and other types of minor 

out buildings.  

Proposals for development at Mallala, Dublin, Thompson Beach and Parham were received 

throughout the year, with most coastal applications referred to the Coast Protection Board for ad-

vice on required site and finished floor levels. However, the majority of applications received and 

approved with conditions, related to residential and rural living properties in the Lewiston/Two 

Wells area, including those seeking approval for horse keeping and dog kennelling. Plastic hot-

house developments were also approved by staff during the period. 

The creation of additional allotments within the district also continued, with 20 land division appli-

cations processed by Council. These included a mix of mostly residential and rural living allot-

ments, and some boundary realignments in the agricultural areas. 

Approximately 27 development applications were publicly notified during the period. 

Council Development Assessment Panel (CDAP) 

Seven meetings of Council’s Development Assessment Panel took place during the period, an in-

crease of two from the previous year. The panel meets when required on the first Tuesday of each 

month to consider public notification development applications where there has been representa-

tions, applications that are being recommended for refusal, and any other applications that staff 

consider warrant the attention of the panel.  The panel may also be called to consider applicant 

compromise proposals resulting from appeals to the Environment, Resources and Development 

Court against their decision to refuse a particular development. 

During the period the panel approved nine development applications and refused three (3) devel-

opments. The Panel also reviewed Council’s Delegations Policy, CDAP Complaints Handling Policy 

and its meeting procedures.  Approval was sought by the Panel to move panel meetings to Two 

Wells, however Council did not support the request. 

Non-Complying Development 

The Development Assessment Commission concurred with the Panel’s decision to approve the di-

vision of one allotment into two within the Gawler River flood plain in Lewiston. Being a non-

complying form of development the concurrence of the Commission was required before Council 

could grant Development Plan Consent to the proposal. 

Table 1 : Development Applications & $ Value of Development

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12

Numbers 337 335 354 316 325

Value (millions) $23.6 $16 $35 $27.8 $32.6

Development Assessment and Compliance 
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Appeals/Compulsory Conferences 

An applicant appealed to the Environment, Resources and Development Court against the panel’s 

decision to refuse the division of one allotment into five in Lewiston. The appeal has been placed 

on hold pending the outcome of a new application. 

Customer Satisfaction – Development Assessment Survey Form 

A total of 286 customer survey forms were sent out with decision notifications for planning and 

building approval during the reporting period with a total of 18 completed and returned.  The level 

of customer satisfaction with the Council’s Development Services Department was very high. The 

levels of satisfaction scored in excess of 8 out of 10 in 83% of cases. 

Building Assessment 

The number of building assessment inspections undertaken for the period was down from the pre-

vious year, as the building inspector was on extended leave. A total of 325 Development Applica-

tions was received by Council, with 64 of these being inspected during the year, meaning approxi-

mately 20% of all applications were inspected.  

For the first time the 25% target specified in Council’s building inspection policy had not been 

met, due in part to the absence of the building inspector for a two month period where no inspec-

tions were undertaken. 

On a positive note, builders notified Council on fifty two occasions (81% of overall inspections), an 

increase of 8% from the previous year. Our records of the past six years indicate that builders 

have progressively become more responsible for notifying Council. This is a very important step 

considering that at the start of the financial year 2012-13, notifications for all dwellings becomes 

mandatory. This change in attitude will assist Council in ensuring that building compliance is 

achieved under the new legislation and that the number of inspections increases.  Of the sixty 

four inspections performed in the last financial year, there was a wide variety of buildings viewed.  

Forty nine inspections (or 76.5%) related directly to dwellings or dwelling additions, ten (or 

15.5%) related to minor domestic structures such as sheds and carports, and five (or 8%) related 

to commercial and industrial developments. Because dwellings are generally considered a higher 

risk assessment, the number of inspections relating to these buildings was also higher.  

The Council’s Building Fire Safety Authority once again saw changes to the Board, namely the res-

ignation of Max McAlister (Chief Fire Warden) and the inclusion of Colin Paton in his place. Despite 

the change, the Authority was able to resolve many issues. In particular, the fire safety issues 

surrounding the institutes located at Mallala, Windsor and Dublin. 

Despite the Building Code legislation changing little during the year, there was one amendment 

that did have a direct impact on Council. All new dwellings built in the district had to comply with 

the six star energy efficiency ratings. Previously, new transportable buildings only needed to com-

ply with five star energy efficiency ratings but the subsequent change to six star requirements 

meant insulation was now required in the floors as well as walls and roofs. Other legislated 

changes included amendments to the footing standard AS 2870, where soil analysis could include 

bore log reports up to six metres deep.  
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By far the major focus of the past year regarding regulations was on the proposed new roof truss 

legislation. Much debate occurred over the quantity of inspections Council should perform, the type 

of responsibilities given to the site supervisors and the qualifications required for site supervisors to 

perform their tasks. In the end, it was determined that 66% of all dwellings designed with roof 

trusses approved by Council and built by a licensed builder must be inspected by the Council. This 

number increases to 90% if the proposed dwelling is to be constructed by anybody other than a 

licensed builder i.e. owner/builder.  

It was also determined that all site supervisors shall provide Council with a checklist to confirm any 

new house with a roof truss installed in it is done so correctly. Although the new legislation is a 

concern for larger metropolitan Councils, Mallala Council should be able to handle the adjustment. 

Using inspection figures obtained for the last six years as a guide, we have the ability to meet 

these new obligations. The legislated changes were implemented at the start of the financial year 

2012-13. 

Two new developments stood out in the 2011-12 year. Although not the biggest, probably the most 

influential development on the Two Wells streetscape was the renovation of the building located at 

112 Old Port Wakefield Road. The quality of the renovation was high and it helped rejuvenate the 

west end of the street.  The other important development to occur was the commencement of the 

new Council depot re-development located in the township of Mallala.  

Compliance 

Illegal land use and building work has again been observed by Council staff during the period. Ap-

proximately 30 separate matters were investigated and progressed. Some of these matters impact 

negatively on adjoining land owners and as a result require detailed further investigation. 

Compliance issues followed up by Council’s planning and building staff included the following: 

Various land uses without approval, e.g. storage of materials resulting in a ‘ junk yard’,  

keeping of animals and associated structures without approval, including dog keeping and associ-

ated kennelling 

Illegal structures, e.g. sheds, fencing, additions, building conversions, verandahs, carports and 

some plastic covered green houses and associated development. 

Non-compliance with existing conditions of approval has also been observed by Council staff during 

the period. 

It is noted that some residents and property owners are not aware that certain activities on their 

properties require Development Approval under the Development Act, 1993, including change in 

land use and building work. 

The decision of Council to fund the employment of a full time Compliance Officer will significantly 

improve the ability of Council to follow up and investigate compliance matters. It is expected that 

an appropriate person will commence in this role in approximately September 2012. 
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Regulatory Services 

Food

Council continues to undertake its legal responsibilities under the provisions of the Food Act 2001 with 

the resources available. Food premises throughout the district are inspected on a regular basis. The 

frequency of inspections is dependent on their risk classification which is established using the Austra-

lian New Zealand Food Standards Council (ANZFSC) system. 

Of the 75 food premises in the district, 16 are rated as low risk, 55 as medium and one as high risk.  

The remaining three premises are deemed to provide food to ‘vulnerable populations’ and are required 

to provide a Food Safety Plan and be independently audited, however Council is still responsible for 

enforcing any non-compliance of these premises.   

During the 2011/2012 period there were 55 routine inspections conducted and a total of 11 re-

inspections for non-compliance. In the same period, seven warning letters were sent and one Im-

provement Notice was issued (later complied with). There were no food related complaints received by 

Council in this years reporting period, which is encouraging. 

Proprietors are regularly informed of changes to food legislation best practice standards and relevant 

health warnings regarding food requirements. Food safety and hygiene legislative information is dis-

tributed to all food business, community and charitable organisations in the Council district. 

The Council Website is also continually updated and information is available relating to the relevant 
legislation and codes, food business notification, food handler training and links to other food related 
information. 

The “I’m Alert” online (free) Food Safety Training Program has been very successful and has received 

good patronage with over 115 individuals logging on to the system to date. Overall, the response to 

the service has been very positive although the completion of a more formal TAFE course may be 

more appropriate for some businesses. 

Public and Environmental Health 

The new Public Health Act 2011 has begun a gradual role out over the next two years and will eventu-

ally completely replace the Public and Environmental Health Act 1987. Officers will still be authorised 

under the old act until the new legislation is completely implemented.

The Act recognises Local Government’s role as: 

�� public health authorities for their areas  

�� preserving, protecting and promoting public health within its area 

�� Co-operating with other authorities involved in the administration of the Act 

�� ensuring that adequate sanitation measures are in place in its area 

�� ensuring that activities do not adversely affect public health 

�� identifying risks to public health within its area 

�� providing or supporting activities within its area to preserve, protect or promote public health. 

It is believed that the Act will not fundamentally change the role of Local Government in public health,   

although councils will need to implement a Regional Public Health Plan. This process is currently un-

derway with assistance from the LGA and 22 pilot councils, with guidelines expected to be made avail-

able in the fourth quarter of 2012 in line with the commencement of the State Public Health Plan.  The 

LGA will also provide assistance and training to councils in this area. 

Under the current legislation, five inspections of health premises (hairdressers, natural therapists, 

swimming pool) were conducted in the reporting period, all of which complied with the regulations. A 

total of 16 complaints were investigated concerning various public health issues. These included pre-

venting insanitary conditions on premises, and controlling offensive activities. 

High risk manufactured water systems (cooling tower and warm water supply) were inspected and 

audited independently  under the Public and Environmental Health (Legionella) Regulatio. 
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Disease Surveillance 

Notifiable diseases can be associated with a variety of sources, including preparation and con-

sumption of food; access to swimming pools; cooling towers/warm water handling systems and 

handling of potting soil etc. 

Council liaises with the Communicable Disease Control Branch of the Department of Health and 

maintains Communicable Disease surveillance within the district to help prevent the transmission 

of infectious diseases.  This is achieved by undertaking interviews and conducting investigations, 

when necessary, to determine the source of an illness and to establish links between similar 

cases. There were two (2) disease notifications  requiring investigation during this period. 

Vector Control 

Council’s Public and Environmental Health Section regularly liaise with the Department of Health 

regarding monitoring and controlling mosquitoes. Samples of mosquito larvae and adults are col-

lected, identified and recorded for density determination and population monitoring. Due to the 

large areas of coastal mangroves, control of mosquitoes in this area is not practical or viable and 

residents of these areas are encouraged to be aware of the preventative measures they can take. 

Information relating to this is available on the Council Website. 

European Wasps 

During the reporting period there were no European Wasp nests either identified or destroyed. 

Residents are encouraged to report wasp sightings, and Council supplies information and instruc-

tions of how to locate the nest. When the nest is located, arrangements are made to have the 

nest destroyed by a licensed pest controller at no cost to the ratepayer. Further information is 

also available on Council’s website. 

On-site Waste Water Disposal 

Due to the district being a non-sewered area, wastewater system approvals continue to require 

compliance under the Act (Public and Environmental Health (Waste Control) with the receipt of 80 

applications for installation or alteration of wastewater systems and 115 inspections conducted in 

the reporting period. 

During this period there were a total of five systems that were not in compliance with the regula-

tions, which have since been resolved. 

Various types of systems are approved in the area, ranging from a conventional septic tank sys-

tem with alternating trenches, to the more technically advanced Aerobic Waste Treatment Plants 

and Sand Filter Systems. The Septic Tank Effluent Disposal (STED) Scheme at Middle Beach is 

currently the only community based system in the district. 

Animal Management 

Council is responsible for the management of dogs within the district pursuant to legislation un-

der the Dog and Cat Management Act, 1995.  The objectives of the Act are to encourage respon-

sible ownership, promote effective management and reduce the public and environmental impact 

from dogs and cats.  Council is responsible under the Act to receive registration of dogs.   

During the reporting year Council received 3237 individual dog registrations and 119 business 

registrations. It is estimated that the average number of dogs on a property with a dog business 

registration is about 15 dogs, which equates to approximately 1785 dogs.  Total dogs registered 

for the period, including business registrations, was 4903. A door knock conducted by Council 

during the year is considered to be mainly responsible for the increase in the number of regis-

tered dogs from the previous year (4774 registered dogs 2010-2011). 
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Dog Complaint Statistics 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Since the completion of Council’s second Dog and Cat Management Plan for the Year 2012-2017 

pursuant to Section 26A of the Dog and Cat Management Act 1995, policies, procedures and im-

provements are being produced and put into place for dealing with various dog and cat manage-

ment issues.   

The dog off-leash area on Wells Road Two Wells is still being used regularly by the public. 

While Council resolved not to introduce cat management controls at this point, residents are af-

forded advice and assistance in the removal of stray or feral cats, to lessen their impact on the 

environment and society. 

Fire Prevention 

The Fire and Emergency Services Act 2005, stipulates that each rural councils must appoint a Fire 

Prevention Officer for its area.  The role of Council’s Fire Prevention Officer includes the monitor-

ing of residential areas to ensure landowners take reasonable steps to protect property from fire, 

as required under the Act. Inspections of residential areas, leading up to and during the fire dan-

ger season are carried out to assess compliance. Notices are issued where compliance has not 

been met.   

Section 105F Notices are issued pursuant to the Act, requiring landowners to attend to mainte-

nance of land to reduce the risk of fire. Council also has the responsibility to ensure that reserves 

which come under its care and control are maintained to good bushfire prevention standards.  

 
Council’s Fire Prevention Officer is also responsible for the issuing of permits and monitoring 

compliance, pursuant to the Fire and Emergency Services Act, for the agricultural purpose of 

burning off stubble. As the district is largely agricultural, with predominance for cropping, the 

agricultural practice of burning stubble to lessen weed and pest infestation is commonly under-

taken.  

During the fire danger season of the period, Council’s Fire Prevention Officer issued 49 fire per-

mits for that purpose. 

 

Section 105F Statistics 2011/2012

Section 105F Notices Issued 275

Council action required 6

Expiations Issued 5

Complaint 2011/2012

Dog wandering at large 59
Dog impounded 110
Dog returned to owner 60
Dog attack on humans 4
Dog attack on animals 12
Dog harass on humans 0
Dog harass on animals 0
Dog barking 3

Expiation Notices issued 101
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Key Governance & Organisation Services 

Structure and Functions of Council 

Functions of Council 

Council has a legislative requirement and responsibility to: 

�� Determine policies to be applied by the Council in exercising its discretionary powers; 

�� Determine the type, range and scope of projects to be undertaken by the Council; and 

�� Develop comprehensive management plans, budgets, financial controls and performance        

objectives and indicators for the operations of Council. 

Council makes decisions which may direct or determine its activities and functions. Such decisions 

include the approval of works and services to be undertaken and the resources required to undertake 

them. Decisions are made to determine if approvals are to be granted for applications from residents 

for various forms of development. 

Council Meetings 

Council consists of four (4) Wards with eleven (11) Councillors; it is the peak decision-making body 

on all policy matters. Ordinary meetings of the full Council are held on the 4th Monday monthly. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend. Where the Monday is a public holiday, Ordinary meet-

ings are held on the following Tuesday.   

Council’s Strategic Infrastructure & Planning Committee meets on the 2nd Monday, monthly and the 

Strategic Community & Governance Committee on the 3rd Monday, monthly. All Elected Members sit 

on each committee with the goal to discussing items to be consider by Council at it’s Ordinary meet-

ing The provides a greater opportunity for the provision of information and discussion while stream-

lining the decision making process. 

Council’s Development Assessment Panel meets the 1st Tuesday monthly, however does not sit if 

there are no development assessment considerations. 

Ordinary & Strategic Council meetings commence at 7:00pm with the Council Development Assess-

ment Panel meetings commencing at 6:30 pm, all meetings are held in the Mallala Council Cham-

bers, Redbanks Road, Mallala. In accordance with Council’s Community Consultation Policy, Council 

may at times vary the times and locations of its meetings where a specific item of community inter-

est warrants it. 

All Council and Section 41 Committee meetings are open to the public and agenda’s and minutes of 

each meeting are available either at the Mallala Principal Office, Two Wells Service Centre or via 

Council’s website www.mallala.sa.gov.au. 

Governance and Organisation 

�  Council Committees           �  Customer Service               �  Elected Member Support      

�  Events �  Human Resources �  Information Technology 

�  Rating Administration �  Records Management  �  Risk Management              

�  Financial Management & Compliance 
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Customer Service 

With the establishment of the Two Wells Service Centre in late 2010 there continues to be an im-

proved consistent, communicative provision of customer services to the wider community, in-

particular the development application process and public and environmental health matters. Coun-

cil continues to receive positive feed-back from the wider community and in-particular those to the 

South of the District who have benefited from this additional face to face resource. 

With on-going training and development of customer service staff Council now has a muliti-skilled 

team providing additional administrative support to Councils operations. They continue to provide 

valuable administrative support to the Infrastructure & Planning and Corporate & Community Ser-

vices departments with a number of staff undertaking a range of roles and responsibilities.  

Following the Complaints Handling policies and procedures audit by the State Ombudsman late in 

the 2010/2011 period Council set about reviewing the Ombudsman’s recommendations and made 

minor amendments to its Internal Review of Council’s Decision Policy, more importantly Council 

undertook a complete review of its Customer Service Charter which, following considerable consul-

tation with staff and Council, saw the development and implementation of a more accurate charter. 

The Ombudsman was happy with Council’s strategic direction and the work undertaken with the 

view to ensure best practice with its complaints handling requirements.  

Financial Management 

As part of the financial sustainability program Council has in place a long term financial plan and 

associated financial policies to ensure cash flow and debt levels are monitored and managed effec-

tively to produce an optimum outcome for Council and the community.  

Key Performance Indicators are used to analyse our financial position and identify any trends in our 

sustainability. Council endeavours to inform the community of its current financial position through 

its Public Consultation Policy relating to the Annual Business Plan, Long Term Financial Plan, Budget 

& Rating Reviews and Councils Audit Committee. Financial sustainability indicators are also reported 

three (3) times annually as part of the budget review process, tracking our performance and in-

forming Council, Auditors and the Audit Committee. 

Financial Statements for the year ending 30 June 2012 

Council’s auditor, Ian McDonald, audited and recently accepted and signed the District Council of 

Mallala Annual Financial Statements, without qualification. The Council received and noted the 

statements at its general meeting on Monday 26 November 2012. 

The Financial Statements, Notes to the Financial Statements and the Key Performance Indicators 

are presented in Appendix One (1) to this report and indicate that Council’s overall performance, 

while requiring close monitoring over this period of extensive growth, remains within acceptable 

levels. Whilst the debt level remains manageable, Council’s aim to produce a positive operating re-

sult continues to provide a challenge and its performance in maintaining and renewing infrastruc-

ture assets is within the Local Government’s target range. 

National Competition Policy 

Council finalised and implemented three (3) By-Laws during the period—By-Law No:1 – Permits & 

Penalties; By-Law No:3 – Roads; and By-Law No:5 Moveable Signs  

Council continued to work on its By-Law No: 2 Local Government Land & By-Law No: 4 Dogs with 

public consultation occurring late in the period. Council hopes to resolve both By-Laws early in the 

2012/2013 period. 

Council undertook no significant business activities in either category for the financial year outside 

of its budget. 
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Governance 

Community Consultation 

Council holds regular Consultation & Information sessions relevant to specific projects from time to 

time and members of the public are encouraged and invited to attend. Members of the public have 

a number of opportunities and avenues to express their views on particular issues before Council 

including:  

Deputations — A member of the public wishing to appear before Council or a Section 41 Committee 

must seek permission of the Mayor or Committee Chairperson. A request must include a statement 

of the reason why the member wishes to appear. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) must notify the 

Mayor and the Mayor must advise the CEO, in writing, that the CEO notifies the member, in writing, 

of the date and hour of the meeting and also informing them that they have up to five (5) minutes 

to discuss the item. Council recorded nil deputations during the 2011/2012 period. 

Elected Members — Members of the public may contact, verbally or in writing, an Elected Member 

to discuss any issue relevant to Council. 

Employees — Members of the public may contact Council employees, verbally or in writing to dis-

cuss issues relevant to Council. 

Open Forum — To encourage direct communication between the public and Council, a 30 minute 

open forum segment is held for the public to make statements, place submissions or put questions 

before Council.   

Petitions — Written petitions must be addressed to Council and may address any issue within the 

Council’s jurisdiction. Council recorded eight (8) petitions during the 2011/2012 period. 

Written Requests — A member of the public may write, this includes email and fax, to Council on 

any Council Code, Policy, Procedure or Service. 

Council acknowledges that the community has a right to be informed and involved in decisions af-

fecting the District and is committed to effective consultation and communication with its residents 

and other stakeholders. Effective consultation involves seeking and receiving feedback, as well as 

providing information to the community.  

Council Community Consultation Policy outlines the procedures Council will follow when engaging 

and seeking feedback from the community in its decision making process ensuring accountability 

and transparency. Dependant on the topic for consultation, the number of residents who have the 

potential to be affected and the community interest in the topic will determine the level of consulta-

tion undertaken by Council which may include: 

�� Regular Newsletters – District Communicator 

�� Direct Mail Publications 

�� Local, Regional & State Media Publications and Releases 

�� Community Forums and Stakeholder Meetings 

�� Market Research and Surveys 

�� Council’s Website – www.mallala.sa.gov.au 

�� General Fixed Displays / Notice-Boards / Library Displays. 
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Council Codes & Policies 

Council continues to develop, implement and review its Governance and Operational codes, policies 

and associated documentation in accordance with legislative requirements and regularly undertakes 

internal, Local Government and community consultation with its policy development and review. 

Council maintains a review schedule of its policies with all legislatively required documentation, 

available to members of the public at Council’s Principal Office – Mallala, the Two Wells Service Cen-

tre or at www.mallala.sa.gov.au Documents are available for viewing on site or purchase in accor-

dance with Councils Schedule of Fees. 

Council’s policies align with its Strategic Framework under Community Development, Economic De-

velopment, Natural & Built Environment and Governance and Organisation. 

Council maintains a range of policies required by legislation including, but not limited to:  

�� Asset Impairment Policy 

�� Asset Management Policy 

�� Asset Revaluation Policy 

�� Caretaker Policy 

�� CDAP Complaints Handling Policy 

�� Code of Practice – Access to Council Meetings & Documents 

�� Code of Practice – Council Meeting Procedures 

�� Community Consultation Policy 

�� Council Members Allowances & Benefits Policy 

�� Customer Service Charter 

�� Delegations Policy 

�� Disposal of Assets other Than Land Policy 

�� Disposal of Surplus Land Policy 

�� Elected Members Code of Ethics 

�� Employees Code of Ethics 

�� Funding Policy 

�� Gifts, Benefits, Hospitality & Services Policy 

�� Grievance Procedure – Elected Members 

�� Information Technology and Communications Policy 

�� Internal Review of Council Decisions Policy 

�� Records Management Policy 

�� Risk Management Policy 

�� Tender & Purchasing Policy 

�� Treasury Management Policy 

�� Volunteer Policy 

�� Vulnerable Groups / Individuals Policy 

�� Whistleblowers Policy 

Delegations 

Under Section 44 of the Local Government Act 1999 Council is able to delegate authority under a 

range of legislative acts and regulations to the Chief Executive Officer who in-turn is able to sub-

delegate authority to specific Council employees and committees. 

Council last reviewed its delegations and associated authority in May 2011 and maintains a Delega-

tions Register available to members of the public at Council’s Principal Office, 2a Wasleys Road, 

Mallala as required by legislation and on Council website at www.mallala.sa.gov.au 

Council is due to review it’s Delegations Register in the first half of the 2012/2013 period. 
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Internal Review of Council Decisions 

In accordance with Section 270 of the Local Government Act 1999, Council has an established In-

ternal Review of Council Decisions Policy and associated procedures. The Policy is one aspect of 

Council’s customer focussed approach to service delivery. It provides a further opportunity to re-

view the way Council provides services to the community and to identify areas for improvement. 

Council is committed to transparent decision-making processes; and to providing access to a fair 

and objective procedure for the internal review of decisions. Grievances may arise as a result of dis-

satisfaction with a decision about a policy, procedure, service or fee. All attempts will be made to 

resolve grievances quickly and efficiently, without the need for formal applications for review to be 

lodged. Sometimes this cannot be achieved. The policy provides guidance for dealing with formal 

requests for internal review of decisions of Council, its employees, and other people acting on be-

half of the Council.  

Council did not receive any formal requests for an Internal Review of Council Decision during the 

period. Council undertook a comprehensive review of its Community Consultation Policy and its 

Complaints Handling Framework which was acknowledged by the Ombudsman as part of their Com-

plaints Handling Audit.  

Section 41 Committees & Subsidiaries 

Section 41 of the Local Government Act 1999 allows Council to establish committees in an effort to 

streamline its business and assist with specific functions and programs within Council. In addition to 

Elected Members being sitting members, members of the public are encouraged to nominate and 

become committee members. The membership of the public to these committees provides greater 

involvement and ownership in specific projects and the decision making process. 

Section 41 Committees predominately operate in an advisory capacity to Council discussing specific 

functions of the Committee and making recommendations to Council which the Council will con-

sider. Each committee has ratified Terms of Reference applicable to their authority, delegation and 

specific functions. 

Council undertook a review of its Section 41 Committee’s during 2011 with the view to better align-

ing its Section 41 committees to the 2011-2014 Strategic Plan and the Strategic Infrastructure & 

Planning and Strategic Corporate & Governance Committees. Council undertook considerable con-

sultation with current committees and the community as a whole, which included a number of 

meetings with current members. The review resulted in the renaming and amalgamation of a num-

ber of committees with some committees being disbanded.  

The following Committees meet on a monthly, quarterly or six (6) monthly basis, with the commit-

tees bound by Council’s Code of Practice – Meeting Procedures. Members of the public are able to 

attend, with agenda’s and minutes of meetings available at Councils Principal Office – Mallala, Two 

Wells Service Centre or Councils website www.mallala.sa.gov.au .  

�� Audit Committee 

�� Community Development & Advisory Committee  

�� Economic Development Advisory Committee  

�� Environmental Management Advisory Committee  

�� Facilities & Infrastructure Management Advisory Committee  

�� Mallala & Districts Aged Homes Committee 

�� Mallala & Districts Historical Committee 
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As part of the Section 41 Committee review the Dublin, Mallala & Windsor Institute committees 

were disbanded, with the view to leasing the facilities back to the community groups. Council, to-

gether with these community groups, undertook community consultation and negotiated suitable 

leasing arrangements for the groups to occupy the facilities. While Council maintains ownership and 

a level of responsibility for the facilities they are being managed and utilised by committed commu-

nity groups and volunteers who it is hoped will see an increased use of these valuable facilities. 

Allowances 

Members of Council’s Audit Committee and Council’s Development Assessment Panel are entitled to 

an allowance within the limits imposed by legislation. This allowance is to help cover the cost of 

performing and discharging their official functions and duties. 

The following allowances were paid by Council for the period: 

Audit Committee 

Mr. John Comrie  $3,000.00—net, plus GST 

Mr. Peter Fairlie-Jones  $1,200.00 

Council Development Assessment Panel 

Mrs. Debra Scott  $2,310.00 

Ms. Sandra Foote  $1,980.00 

Mr. Rob Veitch  $1,350.00 

Mr. Trevor White  $1,890.00  

    Total: $12,030.00

Councillors Yvonne Howard, Joe Daniele and Tom Summerton are members of Councils Develop-

ment Assessment Panel. 

External Bodies 

Council is a member of, or participates in, a number of external Associations, Boards and Commit-

tees throughout the region. 

Council’s membership and participation involves its Elected Members, employees and members of 

the community. These external bodies include, but are not limited to: 

�� Adelaide & Mount Lofty NRM Board 

�� Yorke NRM Board 

�� Regional Development Australia Barossa 

�� Local Government Association 

�� Local Government Finance Authority 

�� Central Local Government Region Inc 

�� Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority  

�� District Council of Mallala Bushfire Prevention Committee 

�� Mid North Regional Passenger Transport Service 

�� Wakefield Group of Councils 

Subsidiaries 

Council is a member of two (2) subsidiaries under Section 42 of the Local Government Act 1999— 

Central Local Government Region (CLGR) and Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 

(GRFMA), in accordance with Section 28(3) Schedule 2 of the Local Government Act, 1999. The 

CLGR and GRFMA Annual Reports are provided as Appendix two and three respectively.  

Council does not have any subsidiaries established in accordance with Part 1 Schedule 2 of the Local 

Government Act, 1999. 
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Human Resources 

During the period Council employed a range of full-time, part-time, casual and contract staff. Coun-

cil employees performed a range of core functions associated with Council’s roles in addition to per-

forming a range of additional tasks and responsibilities to achieve requirements as set out in its An-

nual Business and 2011-2014 Strategic Plans. 

Following Council’s organisational review there continued to be new appointments and changes in 

specific roles, to finalise the intended goals of the review process and to adequately provide the 

resources needed by Council. Council still requires resourcing in its Infrastructure & Planning De-

partment and will further benefit from specific Human Resources direction. Council is an equal op-

portunity employer and welcomes employment interest from all avenues, including internal appli-

cants. While Council does not have an allocated Human Resource Officer, it is establishing a Human 

Resource system which will better assist staff and management, while ensuring the personal and 

professional development of staff. 

Council established an internal employee group (FOCCUS Team) who continue to focus on the per-

sonal and professional development of the organisation and foster a social environment for all staff.  

Council engaged the services of mjrecruit during the period to undertake a cultural review of the 

organisation. The review involved a number of employees being interviewed specifically regarding 

the current culture within the organisation and more specifically employees understanding of the 

Council’s Core Values and Code of Ethics. Recommendations were provided to the Chief Executive 

Officer late in the period and it is intended that the Senior Management Team will address identi-

fied copportunities commencing in the 2012/2013 period. 

Late in the period Council, in conjunction with a number of other Councils, became involved in the 

Workforce Planning Project being facilitated by the LGA and Workforce Planning Australia. The goal 

of the project is to identify Council’s current human resources, their abilities and experience and 

more importantly their future personal and professional plans. It is hoped that at the conclusion of 

the project Council will have a better understanding of what its employees consider valuable in 

terms of their employment, their future plans and what would / would not see them continue their 

employment with Council and how this can best be managed by Council.  Council acknowledges the 

range of industries competing for experienced employees and that it must identify suitable human 

resource practices to maintain a suitably qualified team, now and into the future.  

The Employees Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA) was reviewed during the period with em-

ployees electing to split their current agreement involving all staff and renegotiate specific EBA’s 

for the administrative and construction work groups. Employees were elected from both work 

groups to form an Employee Bargaining Group which was charged with the responsibility of negoti-

ating new EBA for employees. There were minimal changes to employee conditions in the new 

agreement with a 4% wage increase annually for the next three (3) years. Employees, Manage-

ment and the respective Unions all communicated and worked effectively which contributed to an 

easy progression into the next EBA. 

Council continues to be part of the LGA Corporate Health Program with a variety of health based 

initiatives available to staff, including a range of physiological and psychological practitioners and 

services.  
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Directorate Male Female Full�
Time

Part�
Time

Casual Contract

Corporate & Community Services

Chief Executive Officer 1  1   1

Executive Assistant  1 1    

General Manager 1  1   1

Administration Officer  1  1   

Records Officer  1 1    

Finance Coordinator 1  1    

Finance Officer  1  1   

Payroll / HR Officer 1    1  

Accounts Payable / Receivable Officer  1  1   

Rates / IT Support Officer 1  1    

IT Project Officer  1   1 1

Governance Coordinator 1  1    

Customer Services Officers  2 1 1   

OHS Officer 1  1    

Library Services Coordinator  1 1    

Library Officers  2  2   

Community and Communication       
Officers

 3  3   

Cleaner  1   1  

Totals – Corporate & Community 7 15 10 9 3 3
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Directorate Male Female Full�
Time

Part�
Time

Casual Contract

Infrastructure & Planning Services       

General Manager 1  1   1

Administration Officer  1 1    

Development & Compliance Coordinator 1  1    

Depot Operations Coordinator 1  1    

Strategic Infrastructure Coordinator 1  1    

Planning Officer 1  1    

Policy Officer / DA Support  1 1    

Building Officer 1  1    

Environmental Health Officer 1  1    

General Inspector 1  1    

Customer Service Officers  2 2    

Infrastructure Support Services Officer  1 1    

Coast, Estuary Marine Officer  1 1   1

Asset Management Officer 1  1    

Building Maintenance Officer 1  1    

Senior Civil Officer 1  1    

Senior Horticulture Officer  1 1    

Senior Workshop Officer 1  1    

Senior Waste Officer 1  1    

Waste Management Officers 2  2    

Horticulture Officers 2 1 3    

Maintenance and Construction 11  11    

Totals – Infrastructure & Planning 28 8 36 - - 2

Overall Totals 35 23 46 9 3 5
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Information & Technology 

Having in the past investigated and agreed to implement TRIM, Council has progressed to the im-

plementation of the TRIM records management system. The adoption of this system will provide a 

more secure and efficient records management system and is expected to be operational in late 

2012. 

Council purchased the Conquest System which will assist it in its asset management requirements 

and also purchased the ChemWatch Substance System which will see Council better manage its 

workplace substances. 

Council purchased and distributed i-Pad’s for its Elected Members and Senior Management; this 

has been extremely valuable for the provision of information and more specifically for use during 

a range of meetings. Council reviewed its Records Management Policy and introduced an Informa-

tion Technology and Communications Policy to assist in the best practice management of the new 

IT resource.  

Rating & Property 

Modelling property-rate revenue is completed annually when Council formulates its annual budget 

to ensure overall rate increases are kept at targeted levels whilst accounting for valuation incre-

ments. Council makes adjustments to its variable rate to balance the impact of rate increases on 

individual households. 

Council continues to use a minimum charge plus variable rate by zone model in calculating and 

raising property rate revenue. The authenticity of property, name and address records is checked 

against the data provided by the office of the Valuer-General annually and updated where neces-

sary. 

At its 25 June 2012 ordinary meeting, Council resolved that the 2012-2013 Financial Year Rate 

Instalments would be: 

7 September 2012, 7 December 2012, 1 March 2013, and 7 June 2013. 

Electoral Representation 

Section 12(4) of the Local Government Act 1999 requires Council to complete a comprehensive 

review of its size, composition and the division, or potential division of the Council are into Wards, 

this review must be completed at least every eight (8) years. In accordance with Section 12(4) 

and Section 12(8) (a) of the Local Government Act 1999 C.L Rowe & Associates conducted and 

provided a report to Council in August 2009.  

Due to recently introduced legislative amendments, Council is required to complete another review 

by April 2013, so as to ensure fair and equitable representation of all electors, prior to the 2014 

Local Government elections. 

Sections 26 & 33 of the Local Government Act 1999 outline the need to ensure fair representation 
while avoiding over representation in comparison to other similar sized Councils.  The District 
Council of Mallala is classed as Rural Agricultural Large (RAL).   
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 The following table is a representation of Councils comparison with other RAL Councils: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Records Management 

Records management continues to be significant to Councils operations; it enables the control of 

one of our most valuable resources and information requirements. Council uses the GDS20 – Gen-

eral Disposal Schedule filing system as developed by State Records. All official records are captured 

and registered in our records management system. The implementation of the TRIM records man-

agement system in late 2012 will further improve Council’s records management practices. 

Access to Council Documents   

In accordance with Section 92 of the Local Government Act 1999, Council has an established Code of 

Practice – Access to Council Meetings and Documents. The following documents are available for 

public inspection at Council’s Principal Office in Mallala, or by visiting Councils website at 

www.mallala.sa.gov.au  

Members of the public may purchase copies of these documents in accordance with Councils Sched-

ule of Fees and Charges available on request: 

 

Council Electors Total  Representative  

Clare & Gilbert Valley 6454    10 645 

Coorong 4011      9 445

Grant 5680 10 568

Mallala 5580 11 507

Mid Murray 6599 12 549

Naracoorte / Lucindale 5956 11  541

Northern Areas 3531   9 392

Renmark Paringa 6403   9 711

Tatiara  4631 10 463

Wakefield Regional 4835 11 439

�� Annual Budget �� Register of Allowances & Benefits 

�� Annual Financial Statements �� Register of Community Land 

�� Annual Report �� Register of Debenture Loans 

�� Council & Committee Agendas & Minutes �� Register of Interests,  

�� Council By-laws �� Register of Leases & Licences 

�� Delegations Register �� Register of Public Roads 

�� Development Plans �� Register of Salaries 

�� Elected Members & Employees Code of Ethics �� Schedule of Fees & Charges 

�� Long Term Financial Plan �� Strategic Plan 

�� Organisational Policies �� Voters Roll 
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Freedom of Information 

Requests for information not included above will be considered in accordance with the Freedom of 

Information Act 1991 and the Local Government Act 1999.   

In accordance with this legislation an application fee and where appropriate, a search fee, must 

be forwarded with a completed request form as provided for in Regulation 275 of the Freedom of 

Information Act 1991, unless the applicant is granted an exemption.   

Where the applicant requires copies of any documents, pursuant to a Freedom of Information  

Application, the charges set out in Council’s Schedule of Fees & Charges will apply. 

Freedom of Information enquiries and Application Forms must be addressed to: 

Governance Coordinator 

District Council of Mallala 

P.O. Box 18 

Mallala  SA  5502 

Applications will be responded to as soon as practicable within the statutory period of Council re-

ceiving the properly completed Freedom of Information Application Form, together with applica-

tion and search fees. In accordance with Section 13 of the Freedom of Information Act 1991 and 

Section 65 of the Local Government Act 1999 nil determinations relating to Access to Documents 

requests were received by Council in the twelve months to 30 June, 2012. 

Amendment of Council Records 

A member of the public may request access to Council documents, to make amendments to their 

personal affairs, by making a request under the Freedom of Information provisions of the Local 

Government Act 1999. A request may then be made to correct any information about them that 

is incomplete, incorrect, misleading, or out of date. 

To gain access to these Council records, a Freedom of Information Request Form must be com-

pleted, as indicated above, outlining the records that the applicant wishes to inspect. 

Confidentiality Provisions 

Council utilised the following provisions of Sections 90 and 91 of the Local Government Act 1999 

to consider confidential matters during the period: 

- 90(2)  15 occasions 

- 90(3)(a)  10 occasions 

- 90(3)(b)   1 occasion 

- 90(3)(h)    1 occasion 

- 90(3)(k)    3 occasions 

- 90(3)(m)   1 occasion 

- 91(7)  11 occasions  

- 91(9)            11 occasions. 
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Council’s Development Assessment Panel did not record utilising Section 56A of the Development 

Act 1993 to consider confidential items during the period. 

This Information Statement is published by the District Council of Mallala in accordance with the 

requirements of Section 65(r) of the Local Government Act 1934, as amended. 

Council is pleased to comply with this legislation and welcomes all enquiries from the Public for 

information. 

Risk Management & OHSW&IM 

Council continues to be a self-insurer through the LGA Workers Compensation Scheme and is re-

quired to comply with WorkCover standards and to meet various legislative requirements. The 

LGA continued with its One System Implementation Program which continues to provide a 

greater emphasis on management being involved in the planning and development of Councils 

OHSW&IM System. 

Council was only audited against its risk management practices during the period with the results 

and recommendations of that audit being provided to Council early in the 2012/2013 period. The 

LGAWCS did not undertake an OHSW KPI Audit during the period as it has done in the past as a 

result of the LGA undergoing its own audit by WorkCover. 

Council has seen a significant improvement in its practices having now developed a highly suc-

cessful and efficient OHSW&IM system both practically and administratively.  

Council continues to work on the Good Governance Program providing quarterly reports to its 

Audit Committee. During the period Council has made significant in-roads to its Governance & 

Risk Management performance with more detailed and established policies, procedures, training 

and development.  
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Appendix 1— Financial Statements 



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



Annual Report 2011-12 

52

Appendix 2—CLGR Annual Report 2011/12 

97



��������	
���
���������������

�������	
��������
������

� �����
����
���	���
� �����������	��������
�	�
�����
� ��
��������������
��������	���
� �����������	��������������������
��
� �������	�����!
	������	���
� !����	
����	�������������
� "�����!����	
����	���
� �����������	�������#
��
�

� �����������	�������#�	��!�%
�'
���
� *������	����
����	���
� �����������	�������+������;�
������	
� �����������	�������<����������
� <����<�����!����	
����	���
� �
'�������!����	
����	���
� �����������	�������=��'��<�	�	��


�

98



�������	����

����������	���
�������	
�
���������������������

�	�	
���	�
������
�������
�����
������

��������	�
������
������	

������
������!"#<=#�>?�!QX<Q>�[Q<\

!	"��	�
]]]Q��!"#<=#�>?�!QX<Q>�[Q<\

�

99



��	��	�����#�����%�'	���	���	*�������+����
��������

�^����!"#<=����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��>?�!�]<X��X"<{=?X^�|�?!�	����\!|�#����"?�!������}�"^��
���<=�_�[�#!`�!"���"�	����<X�<���!"#�==?!>�<\"^�#?"~Q��"�!�]���!"?!\�X�?!���?X"�!���<!|�<X�<�
#�>?�!<= � X\{X?|?<#~ � �} � ?"X � `�`{�# � ��\!�?=X � \!|�# � �<#" � � � �} � ��^�|\=� � � � �} � "^� � ���<=�
_�[�#!`�!"���"�	����{~�[?#"\���}�"^���#�[?X?�!X��}����"?�!�����}�"^�����<=�_�[�#!`�!"�
��`�=�`�!"<"?�!����"�	���Q

�^����!"#<=��>?�!�?X��X"<{=?X^�|�"��

� \!|�#"<�� � ����#|?!<"?!>� � <|[��<�~ � <!| � #��#�X�!"<"?�!<= � #�=�X � �! � {�^<=} � �} � � ?"X�
��!X"?"\�!"���\!�?=X�<"�<�#�>?�!<=�=�[�=

� }<�?=?"<"��<!|�����#|?!<"��<�"?[?"?�X��}�=��<=�>�[�#!`�!"�<"�<�#�>?�!<=�=�[�=�#�=<"�|�"��
��``\!?"~�<!|����!�`?��|�[�=��`�!"�]?"^�"^���{���"��}�<�^?�[?!>�?`�#�[�`�!"�}�#�
"^��{�!�}?"��}�"^����``\!?"?�X��}�?"X���!X"?"\�!"���\!�?=X

� |�[�=�����!��\#<>����#�`�"���}�X"�#�<!|�`<?!"<?!���!X\="<"?�!�<!|�������#<"?�!�<!|�
"��X"#�!>"^�!�"^��#��#�X�!"<"?�!�<!|�X"<"\X��}�=��<=�>�[�#!`�!"�]^�!�|�<=?!>�]?"^�
�"^�#�>�[�#!`�!"X���#?[<"���!"�#�#?X��<!|�"^����``\!?"~

� |�[�=���}\#"^�#�������#<"?�!�{�"]��!�?"X���!X"?"\�!"���\!�?=X�}�#�"^��{�!�}?"��}�"^��
��``\!?"?�X��}�"^��#�>?�!

� |�[�=���<!|�`<!<>����=?�?�X�]^?�^�>\?|��"^����!|\�"��}��#�>#<`X�<!|��#����"X�?!�"^��
#�>?�!�]?"^�"^���{���"?[���}�X��\#?!>�"^��{�X"��\"��`�X�}�#�"^����``\!?"?�X��}�"^��
#�>?�!

� \!|�#"<����#����"X�<!|�<�"?[?"?�X�"^<"�{�!�}?"�"^��#�>?�!�<!|�?"X���``\!?"?�X

� <XX��?<"�����==<{�#<"��<!|�]�#��?!���!�\!�"?�!�]?"^��"^�#�#�>?�!<=�=��<=�>�[�#!`�!"�
{�|?�X�}�#�"^��<|[<!��`�!"��}�`<""�#X��}���``�!�?!"�#�X"Q

�^����!"#<=��>?�!�?X�<�{�|~���#��#<"��<!|�?X�>�[�#!�|�{~�<���<#|��}��<!<>�`�!"�]^?�^�
^<X�"^��#�X��!X?{?=?"~�"��`<!<>��<== �<�"?[?"?�X��}�"^����!"#<=��>?�!�<!|��!X\#��"^<"�"^��
��!"#<=��>?�!�<�"X�?!�<���#|<!���]?"^�?"X��^<#"�#Q��^����<#|�^<X�	��`�`{�#X����`�#?X?!>�
�!��#��#�X�!"<"?[���=��"�|�}#�`��<�^���!X"?"\�!"���\!�?=�

� �<#�XX<���\!�?=
� �?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}��<#\!><���X"
� �=<#����_?={�#"��<==�~X���\!�?=
� �?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}��^�������#���<X"
� �^���=?!|�#X�<!>�X���\!�?=
� �>?�!<=���\!�?=��}�_�~|�#
� �?>^"��>?�!<=���\!�?=
� �?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}��<==<=<

� �?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}���\!"��`<#�<{=�
� ��#"^�#!��#�<X���\!�?=
� �?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}��##�#����<##?�"�!
� �?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}���"�#{�#�\>^
� ��#"��?#?���>?�!<=���\!�?=
� �<��}?�=|��>?�!<=���\!�?=
� �?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}���#�����!?!X\=<

�^���>?�!�X�<#�<�X�<!X�"^���<#�XX<�"^#�\>^�"^���=<#���<==�~����#�����!?!X\=<���|�=<?|��
�=<?!X���?|�<!|�����#���#"^�|?X"#?�"X�"^#�\>^�"��"^���=?!|�#X�<!>�X����[�#?!>������#���!"��}�
"^��?!��#��#<"�|�<#�<��}�"^���"<"��<!|���`�#?X�X�X�`�������#���!"��}�"^���"<"��X����\=<"?�!�
�\"X?|���|�=<?|�Q

�

100



.����	�;	��	�����������<��

��������� �<~�#��<`�X��<?"=<!|���<��}?�=|�

�	
�=��������
�<~�#�<~��>!�]����#�����!?!X\=<�
�#���[?==���?=X�!����#"��?#?��

�>	���'	�?	�"	���
�<~�#��==<!��\>^�~���=<#����_?={�#"��<==�~X�
�<~�#�\"^��^?""=�����"�#{�#�\>^�

�	�	*�	����	�#%��+�	�
�>	���'	�

�<~�#��<`�X��<?"=<!|���<��}?�=|�
�<~�#��==<!��\>^�~���=<#����_?={�#"��<==�~X�
�<~�#�<~��>!�]����#�����!?!X\=<�����#��~

�>	���'	�.����	�� �!?"<��#?X�

������� �<!�_Q�����!<=|

�

101



�	�����#�����%�'	���	���	*����;��������
?���*	�	�

�^����!"#<=����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��>?�!���<#|��}��<!<>�`�!"���`�#?X�X�<!��=��"�|�|�=�><"��
<���?!"�|�}#�`��<�^��}�"^��	��`�`{�#���\!�?=XQ����#��~�|�=�><"��?X�<=X��<���?!"�|��]?"^�
��=?�~��#�[?X?�!X�<==�]?!>�}�#�#��#�X�!"<"?�!�{~��"^�#��=��"�|��#��!|�#X�|�`�`{�#XQ

��==�]?!> � "^� � ��[�`{�# � ��	� � ���<= � _�[�#!`�!" � �=��"?�!X� � ��!X"?"\�!" � ��\!�?=X � �} � "^��
��!"#<= ����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��>?�!�<���?!"�| �"^��}�==�]?!>���\!�?= �|�=�><"�X�"��"^����_�
��<#|��}��<!<>�`�!"�}�#�<�"�#`�"�����?#��<"�"^����	�����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��=��"?�!X��X\{���"�
"��"^���#�[?X?�!X�]?"^?!�"^���^<#"�#��#�<`�!|`�!"�{~�<���!X"?"\�!"���\!�?=�

������� �	�	*�	 ���>=��	�	*�	�

�^���<#�XX<���\!�?= �<~�#��#?<!��\#! ���<~�#��<[?|����#?�X

�?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}��<#\!><���X" �<~�#���<!���==?!> �#��#?<!���!�~

�?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}�"^�������#���<X" �<~�#��<\=��^�`<X ���<~�#���<!��||<

�=<#����_?={�#"��<==�~X���\!�?= �<~�#��==<!��\>^�~ �#��=?�<{�"^��<=[�#"

�=?!|�#X�<!>�X���\!�?= �<~�#���"�#��=<""�#~ ���<~�#���^!��^\"�

�>?�!<=���\!�?=��}�_�~|�# �<~�#���"�#��<""�~ ���<~�#��\|~��<#"?!>"�!

�?>^"��>?�!<=���\!�?= ���<~�#���<!��^#=<�^ !?=

�?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}��<==<=< �<~�#��<#�\X��"#\|]?��� !?=

�?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}���\!"��`<#�<{=� �<~�#��<!|#<��<\�^��� ���<~�#�<~��<=��#

��#"^�#!��#�<X���\!�?= �^<?#���!��#�]!� ���^<?#���!?X��=<#�

�?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}��##�#����<##?�"�! �^<?#���=?!��<#�~! ���^<?#��<=��=`��~�#=��

�?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}���"�#{�#�\>^ �<~�#�\"^��^?""=� �#��#<!���<#|{�""=�

��#"��?#?���>?�!<=���\!�?= �#���[?==���?=X�! ���<~�#���^!�^�|�

�<��}?�=|��>?�!<=���\!�?= �<~�#��<`�X��<?"=<!| ���<~�#��<##~=��""�!X

�?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}���#�����!?!X\=< �<~�#�<~��>!�] �#���^!�?�^

�

102



?		��*������	��	������	*����;��������
?���*	�	�

��\#�`��"?!>X��}�"^����!"#<=����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��>?�!���<#|��}��<!<>�`�!"�]�#��^�=|�
|\#?!>�"^����		�	����<�^�^�X"�|�{~��!���}�"^��`�`{�#���\!�?=XQ�

�^��`��"?!>�^�X"�<!|�=��<"?�!�?X�#�"<"�|�"^#�\>^�\"�"^��#�>?�!��!�<=�^<{�"?�<=��#|�#Q

���"?!>X�]�#��^�=|�

� �#?|<~�	�"^��\>\X"���		����_���^�X"�|�{~��?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}���"�#{�#�\>^�
���"�#{�#�\>^�

� �#?|<~��"^���[�`{�#���		��^�X"�|�{~���#"��?#?���>?�!<=���\!�?=����#"��?#?��

� �#?|<~�	�"^���{#\<#~���	���^�X"�|�{~��<��}?�=|��>?�!<=���\!�?=���<=<�<=[<�

� �#?|<~�		"^��<~���	���^�X"�|�{~��?X"#?�"���\!�?=��}���#�����!?!X\=<���#|#�XX<!�

�

103



�����		�?		��*�

�!�<���#|<!���]?"^�?"X��^<#"�#��"^����!"#<=����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��>?�!�`<?!"<?!X�X�[�#<=�X\{�
��``?""��X�"��<XX?X"�?!��}}��"?[���#����"�?`�=�`�!"<"?�!�<!|�>�[�#!<!��Q��^����``?""��X�
>�!�#<==~�`��"��!�<!�<X�!��|X�{<X?X�<!|���`�#?X��#��#�X�!"<"?[�X�}#�`�"^��[<#?�\X�`�`{�#�
��\!�?=X�<=�!>�]?"^��?!�`<!~��<X�X�<||?"?�!<=�|�=�><"�X�}#�`��"^�#�#�=�[<!"�#�>?�!<=�{�|?�X�
�#�X"<"��>�[�#!`�!"�<>�!�?�X�

�����		 ?	�"	�� ?		��*���	�
�>	���'	�
�����		�

�<~�#��<`�X��<?"=<!|����<~�#�<~��>!�]���#���[?==���?=X�!���<~�#�
�==<!��\>^�~���<~�#�\"^��^?""=�

��"^��\=~���		
	�"^����"�`{�#���		
	X"��<~���	�

"^��\!����	�

����������		� �<~�#�<~��>!�]���^<?#����#��<"^?����]`<!���#��!|#�]���^!X�!��
�#���=?!��<[?�X

	X"����"�`{�#���		
	�"^���{#\<#~���	�

?	�"	�����������
��.@���������

�#��<[?|���#��`���<#�XX<����#��?>�=��<!|���<#\!><���X"����#�
�~��=?>^"���=<#����_?={�#"��<==�~X����#���"�#��<#|�#�������#�
��<X"����#���=?!��<[?�X���=?!|�#X�<!>�X����#���^!��#<���_�~|�#���
�#��#?<!��<##���?>^"����#��^<#=�X��<!X\�"����<==<=<����#���<!�
�^�#?"�!���"��`<#�<{=�����#��>�#��#�]=�~����#"^�#!��#�<X����#�
�?<!��?=X�!���##�#����<##?�"�!����#���##~��<#!�X����"�#{�#�\>^���
�#��!|#�]���^!X�!���?#?���>?�!<=����#��^?=��<##~�_��}}��^�#?|<!�
��<��}?�=|����#��!|#�]��<`�#�!����#�����!?!X\=<�Q��^<?#�|�{~�<�
`�`{�#��}�"^����_�����\"?[�

	�"^��\=~���		
	�"^���"�{�#���		
	
"^�����`{�#���		
	�"^���#?=���	�

�����
���
Q����������	�
�������*�
�����		�

�#��?<!��?=X�!����^<?#���##�#����<##?�"�!����#�_#<!"�����!�?��
��=<#����_?={�#"��<==�~X����#��~�����!!�#��_�~|�#����#��#�|��?!���
��<#\!><���X"����#��#�!"�!���<#�����"��`<#�<{=�����#���!�
�?="�!����#"��?#?�����#�?�^<#|��~`�������#���<X"����X���<!!��
�\�^<!<!���>?�!<=���[�=��`�!"����#���{���``�#=��������
�������!�%���
���	�<��>����?�@��%%�����

�"^��\=~���		
��"^����"�`{�#���		
��"^���[�`{�#���		
��"^���{#\<#~���	�
��#|���#?=���	�
��"^� ��{#\<#~ � ��	��
�	�"^��\!����	�

�	*�����������	�
����*	�+		���*�
�����		�

�#��<[?|���#��`���<#�XX<����X��!?"<��#?X�����_�����\"?[��
�}}?��#����X���==~��!!���<}}?!�������������X��!!����#�!�~�����
�<#�XX<����X��~!!���<=|�!��<`��?=�?!>"�!�����������<#|����#�
�?����#�"]�==���������������#��|<`�_#<~���_��
���^!?�<=��<!�=����#��<��\�=?!���<=X"�!���#��!"^�!~���X"\#�<�����#�
�?`��?=!����X��~=[?<��\>^<!���X��<#=<��?==?!>"�!���X���=?XX<�
�{{������#��\##<~���]!X�!|

�"^��\>\X"���		
	�"^��\>\X"���		
	�"^���"�{�#���		
�"^���[�`{�#���		

����������������
X	Z��[�

�X��=�?X<��<`<!!<���<==<=<����#�_��}}��^�#?|<!���<��}?�=|����#�
�"��^�!�_�=|X]�#"^~����#�����!?!X\=<����#��!|~���X"�������#�
��<X"����#��?>�=��<!|���<#\!><���X"����<"#?����=?}"�!����#"��?#?����
�\#?�=���^�=����"��`<#�<{=��Q��X���{�#<^��==�!����<X"�<#��
�<�?=?"<"�#��������}}?�?�

	X"��\>\X"���		
	�"^�����`{�#���		
�"^��<~���	�

�	*������!��	�
?���*	�	��
�����		�

�<~�#�\"^��^?""=����^<?#����#��<##�!���#"^���"��?#?�����X��<\=<�
�\!�<!��?[�#����#"^�#!��#�<X����#��>�#��#�]=�~����#"^�#!�
�#�<X�Q��X��<!�XX<�����^�=���<X"�����#|?!<"�#��������}}?�?�Q

�"^���[�`{�#���		
��"^���{#\<#~���	�
	�"^��<~���	�

!�	�����\	��
+		���*������		�

�#��?<!��?=X�!���###�#����<##?�"�!����#��<#���?==���=?!|�#X�<!>�X���
�#�?�^<#|��~`�������#���<X"����#���!?X��=<#������#"^�#!��#�<X�Q�
�X���==~��!!���<}}?!��<?|�^���!"������������#��=<#���!^<`��X�
��!!?}�#��\!#���<"^?����]`<!����#"^�#!�����#���������X��#?X�
�]<}}�#���������#��<\=���^�#"~������<"�#Q

�"^��\=~���		
�"^��\>\X"���		
��"^���"�{�#���		
�"^��<~���	�

!�����������\	��
+		���*������		�

�<~�#��==<!��\>^�~����_�����#��<\=��#�"X�^`�#���"��`<#�<{=����
_<{{~��]�<#X���=<!��^�`X�!���������^#?X�_�X=?!>��_�~|�#�Q�
��==~��!!���<}}?!��������!!���#�]!��_#��!?!>��\X"#<=?<����<#~�
�!!����\!>������Q��#��#�[�#��^?"����?!|}<#`��?<?X�!��}}?��#����
����}}?�?�Q

	�"^���"�{�#���		
��"^���"�{�#���		
�"^���[�`{�#���		
��"^��<!\<#~���	�
	�"^���#?=���	�

�>	���'	�.����	��
�	��������	�
�	'�	Z������		�

�?= �?=

�

104



�	*�����������������!��[���
�

�!��#|�#�"���#�>#�XX�X���?}?���#?�#?"?�X�<!|�<�"?�!X��"^����!"#<=����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��>?�!�
���<X?�!<==~�^�=|X� ?!}�#`<"?�!�}�#\`X��#�]�#�X^��X�"��<==�]�`�`{�#���\!�?=X �<!|��"^�#�
#�=�[<!"�X"<��^�=|�#X�"����`��"�>�"^�#�<!|�|?X�\XX��#�=�<#!�<{�\"��<#"?�\=<#�?!?"?<"?[�XQ�

�^��}�#\`X�<!|�]�#�X^��X��#�[?|��<!�����#"\!?"~�}�#�>#�<"�#�<]<#�!�XX��\!|�#X"<!|?!>�<!|�
�!><>�`�!"�]?"^�[<#?�\X���!"#<=����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��>?�!�<�"?[?"?�X�<!|�?!�#�<X�X�"^��=�[�=�
�}�<�"?[��?![�=[�`�!"�{~�X"<��^�=|�#XQ��^��}�==�]?!>�?XX\��X���?}?��}�#\`X�]�#��^�=|�|\#?!>�
"^����		�	��}?!<!�?<=�~�<#Q

��"^���[�`{�#���		 �?!|}<#`��=<!!?!>���#�X^�����=<#�

��"^� �<!\<#~  � 	X"� � � �#|�

��{#\<#~���	�
�<X"���<!<>�#X��\{��>?�!<=���|<"����#\`X���<�\!|<���=<#����
��=#�X�

�#|���[�`{�#���		 ��<X"<=���\!�?=X��!!\<=���#\`���"�_�#`�?!

	�"^� ��[�`{�# � ��		�
��<!��==�|�

�>?�!<= � �#<!X��#" � ��#�X^�� � � � ����?<= � ���<= � �<|X � �#?�}?!>��
�#~X"<=��#���

��"^� ���"�`{�# � ��		 � <!|�
��"^���{#\<#~���	�

�_��}�#`��#�>#<`���?|���#"^��XX�"��<!<>�`�!"���\{��>?�!<=�
��|<"����#~X"<=��#���

��"^��\=~���		
�=��| � �<`<>� � �#?�}?!> � ]?"^ � �_� � <!| � �_ � �?X<X"�# � �\!|� � �"�
�#�\>^"�!�

��"^��<#�^���	�
�>?�!<=��=<!!?!>��[?�]���#\`���"��?#?����^�X"�|�?!���!�\!�"?�!�
]?"^�"^����#"^�#!�����#����<"\#<=��X�\#��X��<!<>�`�!"���<#|�
<!|��>?�!<=���[�=��`�!"��\X"#<=?<���#���<!|��?|���#"^

���#|���#?=���	�
�<"?�!<= ��#�<|{<!|���"]�#���\{��>?�!<= ���#\`X���^�X"�|� ?!�
��!�\!�"?�!�]?"^��>?�!<=���[�=��`�!"��\X"#<=?<���<==<=<���=<#���
�<|?!<���"��?#?����##�#��

���"^���#?=���	� ��<X"<=���\!�?=X�<!|��\X"#<=?<!�_�[�#!`�!"����?"���?X?"X

	�"^��<~���	�
�?!|}<#`��!|\X"#~���[�=��`�!"���#\`���#|#�XX<!���^�X"�|�]?"^�
"^����#"^�#!�����#����<"\#<=��X�\#��X��<!<>�`�!"���<#|�<!|�
�>?�!<=���[�=��`�!"��\X"#<=?<��<#�XX<�<!|���#����?|���#"^


"^��\!����	� �><|�\#?�¡���<"?[���?"=���=<?`���#\`���\##<

	

105



����	'	�	�����������<��

�\#?!>�"^����		�	��~�<#��"^����!"#<=��>?�!���!"?!\�|�"���#�>#�XX�<�!\`{�#��}��#?�#?"~�
<�"?[?"?�X� � �\#X\�| �\!|�# � "^� � "^#�� ���~ � "<#>�" � <#�<X � ?|�!"?}?�| �]?"^?! � "^� � X"#<"�>?� � <!|�
{\X?!�XX��=<!�

�]�;�����%�'	�����	�����.
	������
� ��	 ��
	����� � �� � �	 � �	���� � �	*��� � ��"������= � �� � �� � ���������	 � Z�� � �	*�����'	�

�	^���	�	�������"�����
����=
� �#%�����Z	����	*���	��"=�����	�"	�����������������[	����	��������'����������	�	'���

��*��������

����	'	�	�����������<��
� ��_���<#|�`��"?!>�<>�!|<X���`?!\"�X�|?X"#?{\"�|�?!�<���#|<!���]?"^���=?�~Q
� ���=?�<"?�!�"���?!?X"�#�}�#�<\|?"���``?""������`�"?�!Q
� ��``?""������#<"?�!X�����\"�|�]?"^?!�"�#`X��}�#�}�#�!��Q
� �""�!|<!���X��"?�!����#�>?�!<=�X\{X?|?<#~�"#<?!?!>�X�`?!<#Q

� ��!"#<=��>?�!�����\"?[��X\���#"����#<"?�!<=�#�[?�]Q

�]�#�����%�'	���	��#	��	����
�����+������"���=
� ��	 ��	���� � #���� �%�'	���	� ��	*��� ��������� � ��

��	� � � � �����"����'	�= � ��
��'	�

�	�'��	��	��'	�=_��	�������*�`�������������
���=
� �	���� �#���� �%�'	���	� ��	*������������ �Z	�� � �	
�	�	�	��`��	*���	��� ���	�����

��������#�����%�'	���	���	'	��
� Q�
��'	���Z��	�	���`����	�������*�����	������	*����������������	���������'��	��"=�

[	=���[	����	���`�
���������	���������[	��

����	'	�	�����������<��
� �==��<"?�!��}�¢����������_�#�X�#[��}\!|X�"�]<#|X��_��}�#`�X\{�#�>?�!<=��#����"XQ
� �\{`?"��#���X<=�}�#�}\!|?!>�X\���#"�}�#�X\{�#�>?�!<=��#����"X�"���_�Q
� �?|���#"^��XX�"��<!<>�`�!"��#����"�X���?!>�X"\|~�<!|��#����"��}}?��#�{#?�}���`�=�"�Q
� ���#|?!<"?�!��}�`��"?!>X�]?"^��=?!|�#X��^<#�|���#[?��X�_#�\��<!|��_�Q
� �""�!|<!���{~����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��?!?X"�#�"���\<#"�#=~�`��"?!>X��}���!"#<=��>?�!Q
� �""�!|<!���{~����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��XX��?<"?�!���_���<!|����<#"`�!"��}��=<!!?!>�<!|����<=�

_�[�#!`�!"�����_��<"���!"#<=��>?�!��\<#"�#=~�`��"?!>XQ
� ��``\!?�<"?�!X�]?"^��_��<!|��}}?����}����<=�_�[�#!`�!"�X"<}}�<X�#��\?#�|Q
� £\<#"�#=~���\!�?=��^?�}�����\"?[���}}?��#�X�}�#\`�^�=|Q
� ���#|?!<"?�!��}���!"#<=���!��<���?!"`�!"X�"���_���"<"������\"?[����``?""��Q

� �>?�!<=�#��#�X�!"<"?�!�<"�����>?�!<=��#><!?X<"?�!��}���\!�?=X��������<!|��_���"<"��
����\"?[��`��"?!>XQ

� �""�!|<!���<"����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��XX��?<"?�!����>�!�#<=�`��"?!>X�<!|�}�#\`X�?!��|�=<?|�Q
� �""�!|<!���<"��\X"#<=?<!����<=�_�[�#!`�!"��XX��?<"?�!�<XX�`{=~�?!��<!{�##<Q

� ��``\!?�<"?�!�]?"^����������\"?[���}}?��#X��!���~�?XX\�X�<X�#��\?#�|Q
� �<#"?�?�<"?�!��}�#�=�[<!"�#�>?�!<=�<>�!�?�X�<!|�{�|?�X��!���!"#<=��>?�!���``?""��X�<!|�<"�

]�#�X^��X�<!|�}�#\`X�<X�<��#��#?<"�Q
� ��`{�#��}��<#=?<`�!"�{#?�}?!>X�<X�#��\?#�|Q
� ��!"^=~�!�]X=�""�#��#��<#�|�<!|�|?X"#?{\"�|Q
� �>\=<#�����=��<=�#<|?��<!|�!�]X�<��#�`�|?<���[�#<>���}���!"#<=��>?�!��#����"X�<!|��[�!"XQ
� ��!"#<=��>?�!�]�{X?"��\�|<"�|Q




106



q]��	*�����������������=�+������"���=

� ��	����*{	���	�������_�	�'�����	����������������������"���=�����	��	�����#�����
%�'	���	���	*����������	�	������*��
��{���'	_�����'��'	_�	�����	�����������"����'	�
�

�����	��������	�����
�����=]

����	'	�	�����������<��
�	*������Q�	��=�`����	����

� ��![�!�|��>?�!<=��"#<"�>?���==?<!���`��"?!>X�]?"^���#"^�#!�����#����<"\#<=��X�\#��X�
�<!<>�`�!"���<#|������<!|��>?�!<=���[�=��`�!"��\X"#<=?<���#���<!|��?|���#"^�����Q

� ��X"�|���#����?|���#"^��!!\<=��=<!!?!>��[?�]���#\`�?!���#"��?#?��]?"^����<!|���Q
� ���\#�|�}\!|?!>�<!|��!>�?!>�X\���#"�}�#�<!!\<=��=<!!?!>�}�#\`X�}#�`��"<"��_�[�#!`�!"Q
� �[?�]��}��|{<���<!|��!>�?!>�=?<?X�!�"���_���_#�]?!>���\!"#~���``\!?"?�X�<!|��>?�!<=�

��[�=��`�!"����=?�~Q
� ���#|?!<"���_�!�`?!��X�"���>?�!<=���[�=��`�!"��\X"#<=?<��������#����?|���#"^Q
� �<!�=�`�`{�#�<"������#�>?�!<=�|�[�=��`�!"�}�#\`Q
� ��![�!�|�\�|<"��{#?�}?!>X��}����<!|����"����!"#<=��>?�!�`��"?!>XQ
� �<#"?�?�<"?�!�?!��>?�!<=�_�[�#!`�!"����#|?!<"?�!���"]�#�Q
� ��!"?!\�|���!"#<=��>?�!��}}?������=��<"?�!�]?"^��>?�!<=����<#"`�!"��}��#<!X��#"���#~X"<=�

�#���Q

!��	�?���*	�	��
� �\!|?!>��}�¢	�������X��\#�|�}#�`������"���!><>���>?�!<=��<X"�����#|?!<"�#�}�#���~�<#XQ
� �>?�!<=�]<X"��`<!<>�`�!"���``?""���#���X"<{=?X^�|Q
� �""�!|<!���<"��_��<!|���_���<!|}?==�<!|�]<X"��`<!<>�`�!"�}�#\`XQ
� �<X"��`<!<>�`�!"�\�|<"��}�#\`X�^�=|Q
� �\!|?!>�X\{`?XX?�!X�"����{?=���\X"�#��#��<#�|Q
� ���#"�"��������!�]<X"��X�#[?����^<#>�XQ
� �?<?X�!�]?"^������<!|���\!�?=X�#�><#|?!>���]<X"����==��"?�!XQ
� �?<?X�!�]?"^�����#�><#|?!>��==�><=��\`�?!>�\!?"Q
� �\���#"�"����\!�?=X�#�><#|?!>�]<X"��`<!<>�`�!"�?XX\�X��<X�#��\?#�|Q

�����
��
� ��![�!�|���!"#<=��>?�!��#<!X��#"���``?""����?!�=\|?!>��<#"?�?�<"?�!�{~������<!|���Q
� �XX�XX`�!"��?!X���"?�!�<!|�#�>?�!<=�X\{`?XX?�!�"������?<=����<=��<|X��#�>#<`Q
� �<#"?�?�<"?�!�?!�����>?�!<=��#�?>^"���#\`���<==<#��Q
� ��``?"`�!"�"�]<#|X�|�[�=��`�!"��}��>?�!<=��#<!X��#"��"#<"�>~�]?"^��>?�!<=���[�=��`�!"�

�\X"#<=?<Q
� �?<?X�!�]?"^����X�<!|�<>�!�?�X�#�><#|?!>���!"#<=��>?�!���\!�?=�}=��|�|<`<>��<!|�!��|�}�#�

#�[?�]��}�|?X<X"�#�}\!|�>\?|�=?!�XQ
� ���#"�"�������<!|�|#<}"�|���"?����}���"?�!�"���_��_�!�#<=����"?!>�X���?!>�#�[?�]��}��_�

�?X<X"�#��\!|�>\?|�=?!�XQ

� ���#"�"�������X���?!>�X\���#"�}�#�<�"?`�=~�#�X�=\"?�!�{~�"^���?!?X"�#�}�#��#<!X��#"�#�><#|?!>�
"^��=�><=�#�X��!X?{?=?"?�X�}�#�#�<|�#�X�#[�XQ

� �\!|?!>��}�¢�������X��\#�|�}�#����<=��<|��=��|��`�|?<"?�!��#����"Q
� �""�!|<!���<"��<|X���!}�#�!�����<#�XX<Q

��'�����	��
� ��![�!�|�`��"?!>X��}���<X"<=���\!�?=X���"]�#�Q
� ��![�!�|�<!!\<=���<X"<=���\!�?=X�}�#\`�<"��"�_�#`�?!Q
� ��=?[�#~��}�X���!|�~�<#��}�¢���������\X"#<=?<!�_�[�#!`�!"��<#?!>�}�#��\#���\!"#~���<X"�<#��

�#����"Q
� ��[�=��`�!"��}���<X"<=���"?�!��=<!�<!|�}\!|?!>��#���X<=�"����#"^�#!�����#������{�<#|Q
� ���<=�_�[�#!`�!"�#��#�X�!"<"?[��<""�!|<!���<"��>?�!<=������<#|�`��"?!>XQ
� �\���#"�|����}\!|?!>�X\{`?XX?�!�"���?�|?[�#X?"~�}\!|Q
� �<#"?�?�<"?�!�?!������!X�#[<"?�!���"?�!��=<!!?!>���?�|?[�#X?"~�}\!|�<!|�����!"�>#<"?�!�

]�#�X^��XQ

��

107



!�	���	�����	�
� ��!"?!\�|�}\!|?!>��}����^!?�<=��}}?��#���<"�#��}�#�<���XX�{~���!"#<=��>?�!���\!�?=XQ
� �\���#"�}�#�|�[�=��`�!"��}�{\X?!�XX��<X�X�<!|�}\!|?!>�X\{`?XX?�!X�}�#�]<"�#��#����"XQ
� ��![�!�|���!"#<=��>?�!��<"�#���``?""��Q
� �""�!|<!���<"��_���"�#`]<"�#��<!<>�`�!"��>#��`�!"��[?�]�{#?�}?!>�<!|�]#?""�!�

X\{`?XX?�!Q
� ���#"�"��������!�]<"�#��^<#>�X�}�#�X��#"?!>�<!|���``\!?"~�>#�\�XQ
� �""�!|<!���<"��_���\##<~��<#=?!>��<X?!��=<!�}�#\`Q
� �\##<~��<#=?!>��XX��?<"?�!��>?�!���<!!\<=�\�|<"��"����!"#<=��>?�!�{�<#|Q

�����	�����*	�������	�*	��=�?���*	�	�
� �X"<{=?X^`�!"��}�#�>?�!<=��=?`<"���^<!>���#����"�X"��#?!>���``?""���<!|�"��^!?�<=��<!�=Q
� ��X"�|�#�>?�!<=��=?`<"���^<!>��[\=!�#<{?=?"~�]�#�X^���?!��=<#�Q
� ��`�=�"?�!��}��>?�!<=��=?`<"���^<!>���\=!�#<{?=?"~��XX�XX`�!"�#���#"Q
� �#�X�!"<"?�!��}��>?�!<=��=?`<"���^<!>��#���#"�"��[<#?�\X�#�>?�!<=��X"<"��<!|�!<"?�!<=�}�#\`XQ
� ���\#�|�}\!|?!>��}�¢�������}#�`��"<"��_�[�#!`�!"�"�]<#|X��!><>�`�!"��}��>?�!<=��=?`<"��

�^<!>�����#|?!<"�#Q
� �<#"?�?�<"?�!��!��_���=?`<"���^<!>���"��#?!>���``?""��Q
� ���#|?!<"�|��_�#��#�X�!"<"?�!�"����#����?|���#"^���!���`�#>�!�~��<!<>�`�!"���``?""��X�

������Q
� �""�!|<!��������]�#�X^��Q

� ���#"�"�������X���?!>�X\���#"�"��?`�=�`�!"���``�!�{�\!|<#~�<=?>!`�!" �����#"\!?"?�X�}�#�
>#�<"�#�#�>?�!<=�#�X�\#���X^<#?!> �<!|�}�#`<=� =?!�<>�X�<!|�#���#"?!>�{�"]��!�"^���>?�!<=�
��!���`�#>�!�~��<!<>�`�!"���``?""��X�<!|��>?�!<=��\X^}?#���<!<>�`�!"���``?""��XQ

� ��##�X��!|�!���"���>?�!<=��\X^}?#���<!<>�`�!"���``?""���#�><#|?!>�X`����|#?}"�<!|�
{\#!?!>���=?�?�XQ

� �\!|?!>�}�#��>?�!<=��=?`<"���^<!>���\=!�#<{?=?"~��XX�XX`�!"�]?"^��������<!|������
X\���#"Q

� �""�!|<!���<"�X"<"�]?|���=?`<"���^<!>�����"�#��>#��`�!"�}�#\`�?!��|�=<?|�Q

�������=�!	��"	��*_�|	������������
	��=
� ��![�!�|�<!|�^�X"�|�#�>?�!<=�[?X?"�{~��������?!���!�\!�"?�!�]?"^���Q
� ���"?!>�]?"^��������#�><#|?!>�<!�`<=?�X�?!�{#�<|{<!|�#�==�\"Q
� �\{`?XX?�!�"����|�#<=��>?�!<=���=���``\!?�<"?�!X�#�[?�]Q
� �\!|?!>��}�¢	�������X��\#�|�}#�`��"<"��_�[�#!`�!"�}�#��!><>�`�!"��}��?!|}<#`��?<?X�!�

�}}?��#Q
� �?!|}<#`��#����"��"��#?!>���``?""����X"<{=?X^�|Q
� �\{`?XX?�!�"���"<"��_�[�#!`�!"��?!|}<#`��=<!!?!>��}�#`X�<!|���!"#<=��>?�!�|�=�><"?�!�

`��"?!>X�]?"^����X�<!|��>�!�?�XQ
� ���#"�"��������!�]?!|}<#`�|�[�=��`�!"Q
� ��![�!�|�`��"?!>��}��><|�\#?�¡���<"?[���?"=���=<?`���\!�?=XQ
� �\���#"�}�#��?>^"��>?�!<=���\!�?=���|�=�<!|�_\?|�=?!�X�"��<XX?X"����<=�_�[�#!`�!"X�"��<XX�XX�

"^��=�!>�"�#`����!�`?��<!|�}?!<!�?<=�?`�<�"X��}�>#�]"^�<!|�<!~�X^�#"�"�#`�?`�=?�<"?�!XQ
� �<#"?�?�<"?�!��!��_�����#"�<!|���#�<"?�!���``?""��Q

��

108



����	������������+�	�	�������<��

��

109



��

110



��

111



��

112



��

113



��

114



�	

115



�


116



��

117



��

118



��

119



��

120



��

121



��

122



��

123



��

124



�	

125



�


126



��

127



District Council of Mallala 53

Appendix 3—GRFMA Annual Report 2011/12 

128



 
 
 
 

Gawler River Floodplain  
Management Authority 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Report  
2011 - 2012 

 
 

 

 

 

Constituent Councils: 

The Barossa Council 

Adelaide Hills Council 

Town of Gawler 

Light Regional Council 

District Council of Mallala 

City of Playford 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Address : 3/58 Charles Street 

Unley South Australia  5061 

Mobile: 0413 174 222 

Email: 

Website: www.gawler.sa.gov.au/grfma 

deangollan@hotmail.com 

 

129



Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority  Annual Report 2011 – 2012 

Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 

Annual Report 2011 – 2012 

Chairman’s Forward 
Major work throughout 2011-2012 has seen the work on the South Para Reservoir 
modifications almost complete as at the 30th June. It has been a major undertaking and is 
testimony to SA Water supervision and Bardavcol's Construction Team that it has been 
completed without any financial overrun. 

Maintenance of the North Para Dam has continued and the two major heavy storms during 
the year proved its worth in respect of downstream events. 
The downstream councils have continued to research their responsibilities and programs 
and the Board now will lend its support to developing the next phase of the necessary works. 
I personally thank the Council’s representatives for their input to our meetings and take the 
opportunity to welcome Dean Gollan as Fred Pedler's successor. 

Dr Bruce Eastick AM 
Chairman 
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GRFMA
The Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority (GRFMA) was formed as a Regional 
Subsidiary under Section 43 and Schedule 2 of the Local Government Act 1999 on 22 
August 2002. The Constituent Councils are the Adelaide Hills Council, The Barossa Council, 
The Town of Gawler, Light Regional Council, District Council of Mallala and the City of 
Playford. 
The Charter provides that a representative of the Adelaide Mount Lofty Ranges Natural 
Resources Management Board (AMLRNRMB) is the Chairperson of the Board of 
Management of the GRFMA. The Charter sets down the powers, functions, safeguards, 
accountabilities and an operational framework and the Business Plan sets down the 
operational plan and financial plan to achieve agreed objectives. 
The GRFMA has been established for the following purposes: 

1. To co-ordinate the construction, operation and maintenance of flood mitigation 
infrastructure in the Gawler River area (the Floodplain); 

2. To raise finance for the purpose of developing, managing and operating and 
maintaining flood mitigation works within the Floodplain; 

3. To provide a forum for the discussion and consideration of topics relating to the 
Constituent Council’s obligations and responsibilities in relation to management of 
flood mitigation within the Floodplain; 

4. To enter into agreements with Constituent Councils for the purpose of managing and 
developing the Floodplain. 

The Board 
The Members of the Board for the year were: 

Authority Board Members Deputy Board Members
AMLRNRMB Dr Bruce Eastick AM, Chairman
Adelaide Hills Council Mayor Bill Spragg

Mr Peter Peppin, CEO
Mr Marc Salver

The Barossa Council Mayor Brian Hurn OAM
Mr Ian Baldwin

Cr Dave de Vries

Town of Gawler Cr Brian Thom
Mr Stephen Kerrigan, CEO

Cr Paul Koch
Mr Alec Shaw

Light Regional Council Cr William Close
Mr Brian Carr, CEO

Cr Peter Graham
Mr Andrew Philpott

District Council of Mallala Cr Ann Picard
Mr Charles Mansueto, CEO

Cr Tom Summerton

City of Playford Cr Dino Musolino
Mr Tim Jackson, CEO

Mr Andy Slager
Mr Shaun Kennedy

Ordinary meetings of the Board are held bi-monthly on the third Thursday, except 
December, which is held on the second Thursday, of the even months commencing at 
9.00am.
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Meetings are hosted by the Constituent Councils on a rotational roster. Six Board meetings 
were held during the year as follows: 

Thursday 25 August 2011 Gawler 
Thursday 3 November 2011  Mallala 
Thursday 12 December 2011  Elizabeth 
Thursday 16 February 2012 Kapunda 
Thursday 19 April 2012 Gumeracha 
Thursday 21 June 2012 Nuriootpa 

A Key Outcomes Summary is prepared following each Board Meeting that highlights the key 
issues and achievements and is distributed to Stakeholders electronically. 

Technical Assessment Panel 
A Technical Assessment Panel has been appointed to support the decision-making 
processes of the Board with delegated powers to provide advice and manage the technical 
aspects of the design, assessment and construction of the various parts of the Scheme. 
The Members of the Panel are: 

� Dr Bruce Eastick AM, Chairman 
� Dean Gollan, Executive Officer, GRFMA 
� Bill Lipp, Principal Stormwater Engineer, Department for Transport, Energy and 

Infrastructure 
� Andy Slager, Civil Engineer, City of Playford 
� Chris Wright, Water Projects Officer, Adelaide Mount Lofty Ranges NRM Board 
� Derek Moore, Principal Engineer Dams, SA Water 
� Mr Adrian Swiatnik, (proxy to Andy Slager) 

The Panel meets as the agenda requires. 

Audit Committee 
Following amendment to the Local Government Act 1999, the GRFMA Board recommended 
to the Constituent Councils that an Audit Committee of three members be formed, 
comprising an independent Chair with audit committee, financial management, governance 
and risk management skills, supported by two council chief executive officers, with audit 
committee and financial management skills, from the Constituent Councils. Following 
endorsement by the Constituent Councils, the Committee held three meetings during the 
year. 

� Thursday 25 August, 2011 at Gawler 
� Thursday 5 April, 2012 at 25 Peel Street, Adelaide 
� Friday 18 May, 2012 at 25 Peel Street, Adelaide 

The members of the Committee are: 
� Mr Allen Bolaffi, Partner, UHY Haines Norton 
� Mr Charles Mansueto, CEO, District Council of Malalla 
� Mr Peter Peppin, CEO, Adelaide Hills Council 
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Executive Officer Services Committee 
In April 2011, a committee was formed to have oversight of the Executive Officer Services 
Contract, including the annual contract performance review process. 
The members of the Committee are: 

� Dr Bruce Eastick AM 
� Cr Ann Picard, District Council of Mallala 
� Mr Charles Mansueto, CEO, District Council of Mallala 
� Mr Stephen Kerrigan, CEO, Town of Gawler 

Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme 
The ‘Scheme’ is described in the ‘Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme’, published by the 
Northern Adelaide and Barossa Catchment Water Management Board and the Department 
of Water, Land and Biodiversity Conservation, October 2002. Based on the Gawler River 
Flood Management Study - Flood Management Plan prepared for The Gawler River Flood 
Management Working Party, BC Tonkin and Associates, April 1994. 
Following the November 2005 flood, the Australian Government, South Australian 
Government, the six Constituent Councils and the Northern Adelaide Barossa Catchment 
Water Management Board committed to a funding package totalling $20 million to implement 
the Scheme. 
The Scheme comprised three parts as follows: 
� The construction of a flood mitigation dam on the North Para River near Gawler – the 

Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam was completed in December 2007. 
� Modifications to the dam wall and spillway of the South Para Reservoir to provide 

flood mitigation – the modifications reached practical completion in June 2012. 
� Construction of levees including the formalization of a controlled parallel flow path 

together with sensitive vegetation and channel maintenance along the lower reaches 
of the Gawler River - to be later described as Strategy 6d – this part of the Scheme 
was abandoned following the findings of the Gawler River Mapping Study in 2008. 

In February 2008, the Gawler River Mapping Study was completed to identify the impact of 
the March 2007 estimates and to identify strategies to mitigate the impact of flooding. 
In June 2009, the Board amended the Business Plan to include the preparation of a Gawler 
River Flood Mitigation Scheme – Mark Two, planned to build on the studies of recent years 
and bring forward strategies that can cost effectively reduce the impact of flooding from the 
Gawler River. The development of the Mark Two Scheme has been delayed by the need to 
provide additional funding to complete the modifications to the South Para Reservoir. 

Flood Events 
4th and 5th September 2010 
Heavy rains fell across the catchment, up to 70 mm, estimated to be approximately a 1 in 7 
year storm event resulted in strong flows in the North Para River. Water began to rise behind 
the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam on Saturday and at 10.00am on Sunday, 
reached a maximum height of 70 metres AHD, just below the high-level outlet pipes. Dam 
waters estimated to be 1.2 Gl extended approximately four kilometres upstream, passed 
through the low level outlet pipe at a controlled flow, returning to stream level at midday the 
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following day. The real time catchment rainfall, river flow data and height of water in the dam 
were able to be monitored on the Bureau of Meteorology website. 

Both the effect of the dam, and filling the South Para Reservoir, mitigated the flow in the 
Gawler River that caused flooding of grazing land just east and west of the new Port 
Wakefield Highway. No property damage was reported. 

Had the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam not been in place, it is estimated 
that a breakout just west of Bakers Road to the north would have occurred, flooding a 
number of horticultural properties. 

8th December 2010 
Following intense storms in the early hours where several centres recorded 24 hour falls of 
70 to 80 mm, that gave rise to strong flows in the North Para River that caused the Bruce 
Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam to operate for the second time in four months. 
Water rose to 72.5 m, which caused the two High Level Outlet Pipes to operate for the first 
time. Dam waters estimated to be 1.8 Gl extended over 4 kilometres upstream passed 
through the low level outlet pipe at a controlled flow returning to stream level by late the 
following afternoon. 

Had the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam not been in place it is estimated that 
a breakout just west of Bakers Road to the north would have occurred, flooding a number of 
horticultural properties. 

These events confirmed that the dam operated as designed and provided protection by 
mitigating the peak flow to a level that could be passed by the lower Gawler River, without 
overtopping the banks causing flooding as was the case in 2005 and 1992. 

Minor Works 
A replacement Turretfield Flow Gauge Weir has been constructed 800 metres downstream 
from the dam on the North Para River. The former flow gauge weir just upstream of the dam 
wall is drowned out in a flood event by the dam waters and has been decommissioned. The 
replacement weir is smaller in design, gauging flows up to approximately 300 cubic metres 
per second. This gauge weir downstream of the junction with Walker Creek provides flow 
data from the western part of the catchment. Data from this flow gauge will be added to the 
online real time data on the Bureau of Meteorology web site. 

Two additional survey monuments have been constructed at the dam site, to provide a total 
of four monuments to provide a survey base to monitor the deformation stability of the dam 
wall and spillway. Part of the maintenance program is to periodically survey the structure to 
ensure that there is no movement. In particular this is performed after major flood or seismic 
events. 

South Para Reservoir Modifications 
To further improve protection of the population at Gawler and the downstream floodplain, 
mitigation works were necessary at South Para Dam. 
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SA Water was approached by the GRFMA in September 2001, to discuss the 
implementation of flood mitigation works at the South Para Dam as part of their overall flood 
mitigation strategies. 

Undertaking the flood mitigation works concurrently with a proposed dam safety upgrade 
was seen as the most economical solution to achieve compliance with ANCOLD guidelines, 
whilst providing considerable additional benefit to the community. The flood mitigation work 
involves modifying the existing spillway crest by raising it by 1.57 m. A 10m central slot 
remained at the original full supply level to provide a 1 in 100 year flood event flood retention 
capacity. The height of the dam embankment crest was raised 2 m by adding 1 m of 
additional fill and installing a concrete parapet wall on top to accommodate the resultant 
increased flood level. 

Since that time, SA Water has been working with the GRFMA for the joint development of 
the South Para Reservoir to improve flood mitigation on the Gawler and South Para rivers, 
and dam safety improvements for the reservoir itself. 

Detailed design work was completed in September 2010 and the total project costed at 
$8.218 million excluding GST. The GRFMA portion of the project cost is $4,382 million 
A contract was awarded for the construction of the works on 12 July 2011. Practical 
completion was achieved on 25 June 2012 and the contract was completed without any 
variations. 

General 
The following Policies have been adopted to provide management guidelines for the day-to-
day business of the GRFMA: 

� Policy A1 - Access to Meetings and Documents 
� Policy C1 - Consultation 
� Policy I1 - Internal Review of Decisions 
� Policy O1 - Operations Manual 

All meetings of the GRFMA and its committees are open to the public. However, under 
prescribed circumstances the public has been excluded on three occasions for the purpose 
set out in the following table. 
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Forum
Total 
Resolutions
for the year

Resolutions
to exclude 
the Public - 
Sec 90(3)

Purpose

Order for 
documents to 
remain
confidential - 
Sec 91(7)

Percentage

Board 66 2

Review / 
Engage 
Executive 
Officer 
Services

0 3%

Technical 
Reference 
Panel

Did not meet     

Audit 
Committee

14 0 0%

Executive 
Officer
Services 
Committee

5 1

Executive 
Officer 
Services 
Contract

20%

Mr Dean Gollan was engaged to provide Executive Officer services under a services 
agreement until 31 December 2013. Mr Gollan has extensive experience in the 
administration of Councils and regional subsidiaries under the Local Government Act. 
The GRFMA has no employees and all services are engaged on a contract basis. 
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2012 2011
Notes $ $

Income
Subscriptions 3          67,000          40,000 
Investment income 1(d)          55,492          72,080 
State Government Grants 7.3     1,409,631            1,415 
Commonwealth Government Grants 7.4     1,234,879            1,415 
Other               842                 32 

Total Income     2,767,844        114,942 

Expenditure
Contractual Services 5     3,978,477        124,798 
Finance Charges            4,141            2,550 
Depreciation 1(i),4        191,510                   - 
Other          11,855          18,853 

Total Expenses     4,185,983        146,201 

Surplus / (Deficit) from Operations    (1,418,139)        (31,259)

Capital Revenue2
State Government Grants 7.3          21,123 
Commonwealth Government Grants 7.4          21,123 
Total Capital Revenues                    -          42,246 

Surplus / (Deficit)    (1,418,139)          10,987 

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income Statement for the Year Ending 30th June 2012
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2012 2011
Notes $ $

Current Assets
Cash at Bank 7,926 59 
Investments 1(d) 22,610 1,587,756 
Debtors - GST 87,172 1,057 
Accrued Grant Income 426,514 

Total Current Assets 544,222 1,588,872 

Current Liabilities
Bank Overdraft - 
Accounts Payable 3,997 
Accrued Expense 188,660 10,678 

Total Current Liabilities 192,657 10,678 

Net Current Assets 351,565 1,578,194 

Non-current Assets
Infrastructure 4 15,320,793 15,320,793 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1(i),4 (191,510) - 
Land 4 326,364 326,364 

Total Non-current Assets 15,455,647 15,647,157 

Net Assets 15,807,212 17,225,351 

Equity
Accumulated Surplus at start of year 16,737,278 16,726,291 
Surplus / (Deficit) from this year (1,418,139) 10,987 

Asset Revaluation Reserves 1(h),4 488,073 488,073 

Total Equity 15,807,212 17,225,351 

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Balance Sheet as at 30th June 2012
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2012 2011
Notes $ $

Equity
Accumulated Surplus
Balance at begining of period 16,737,278 16,726,291 
Add Net Surplus / (Deficit) (1,418,139) 10,987 

15,319,139 16,737,278 

Balance at end of period 15,319,139 16,737,278 

Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at begining of period 488,073 - 
Add movement increase 1(h),4 - 488,073 

Balance at end of period 488,073 488,073 

Total Equity 15,807,212 17,225,351 

The above Statement of Change in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Statement of Change in Equity for the Year Ended 30th June 2012
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30th June 2012

2012 2011
Notes $ $

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts 2,579,337 85,108          
Payments (4,192,108) (138,564)       
Interest Receipts 55,492 72,080          
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities 8.1 (1,557,279) 18,624

Cash Flows from Investment Activities
Receipts - 285,000        
Payments - -                    
Net Cash Used in Investment Activities - 285,000

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held (1,557,279) 303,624

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,587,815 1,284,191
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 8.2 30,536 1,587,815

The above Statement of Change in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
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1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
 
(a) The Local Government Reporting Entity 
This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared for use by the Gawler River    
Floodplain Management Authority. The Board has determined that the Authority is not a reporting entity. 
 
The Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority is a Regional Subsidiary under Section 43 and 
Schedule 2 of the Local Government Act 1999. The Constituent Councils are the Adelaide Hills Council, 
The Barossa Council, Town of Gawler, Light Regional Council, District Council of Mallala and The City of 
Playford. 
 
All funds received and expended by the Authority have been included in the financial statements forming 
part of this financial report. 
 
(b) Basis of Accounting 
This financial report has been prepared in accordance with the following Australian Accounting 
Standards: 
  AASB 110  Events After Balance Sheet Date 
  AASB 116  Property Plant & Equipment 
  AASB 1031  Materiality 
 
No other applicable Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations or other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board have been applied. 
 
This financial report has been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historical costs and does not 
take into account changing money values, or except where specifically stated, current valuation of non 
current assets. 
 
(c) Employees 
The Association has no employees. 
 
(d) Investments 
Investments are valued at cost. Interest revenues are recognised as they accrue. 
 
(e) Cash 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash deposits which are readily convertible to 
cash on hand and which are used in the cash management function on a day to day basis, net of 
outstanding bank overdraft. 
 
(f) Infrastructure 
The Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Control Dam was constructed in 2007. The valuation includes all 
materials, contractor’s costs plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including engineering design and 
supervision fees and all other costs incurred. 
 
(g) Land 
The dam land includes the land on which the dam is constructed, rights of way access to the land and 
‘right to flood’ easements over the land upstream from the dam that will be inundated by dam waters for 
short periods of time during a flood event. The Board valuation was undertaken at 30th June 2011. 
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(h) Revaluation 
The Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Control Dam has previously been brought to account as a historical 
cost. The Board has not sought an independent valuation. The Board recognises that the dam is an 
unique infrastructure and in absence of market based evidence of fair value because of the specialized 
nature of the asset, the Board have used the depreciated cost approach. The Board sought the advice of 
the dam designers, URS Australia Pty Ltd, who advised that the building price increase index outlined in 
Rawlinson’s Australian Construction handbook would be a suitable basis for the escalation of the original 
construction cost for the purpose of revaluation. The index was applied to the contract cost to construct 
the dam infrastructure. The Board revaluation was undertaken at 30th June 2011 and will be undertaken 
every 5 years. 
 
(i) Depreciation 
The depreciation period for the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Control Dam is based on the best 
information available to the Board advised to be 80 years. Depreciation has been applied from 1st July 
2011. 
 
2 Functions / Activities of the Association
 
(a) Revenues and expenses have been attributed to the following functions / activities, descriptions of 
which are set out in Note b. 
 
(b) The activities of the Authority are categorised into the following function / activities: 
 
Administration: The operations of the Authority and its Board 
 
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation 
 
Note 2b Functions of the Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
(excluding depreciation) 
 

Year Grants Other Total Revenue % Expenses Total % Surplus (Deficit)

Administration

2012             107,334                 107,334 3.9%                  71,871 1.8% 35,463
2011                      2,830             112,112                 114,942 26.0%                  75,246 51.5% 39,696

Other Environment: Flood Mitigation

2012              2,644,510               16,000              2,660,510 96.1%             3,922,604 98.2% (1,262,094)
2011                    42,246             285,000                 327,246 74.0%                  70,955 48.5% 256,291

Total

2012              2,644,510             123,334              2,767,844 100.0%             3,994,475 100.0% (1,226,631)
2011                    45,076             397,112                 442,188 100.0%                146,201 100.0% 295,987

Revenue Expenses
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3 Subscriptions
 
The following subscriptions were levied on the Constituent Councils in accordance with Clause 10.2 of 
the Charter for the year: 
 

Constituent Council
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Adelaide Hills Council -$                  277$                 173$                 8,500$              5,000$              
The Barossa Council -$                  1,387$              867$                 8,500$              5,000$              
Town of Gawler -$                  2,774$              1,734$              8,500$              5,000$              
Light Regional Council -$                  1,387$              867$                 8,500$              5,000$              
District Council of Mallala -$                  4,626$              2,891$              8,500$              5,000$              
City of Playford -$                  5,549$              3,468$              8,500$              5,000$              

Total -$                  -$                  16,000$           10,000$           51,000$           30,000$           

Scheme Works Maintenance Operations

 
 
 
 
 
 
4 Non Current Assets Summary
 
Summary including movement in the carrying amount 
 

2012 2011

Infrastructure
North Para - carrying amount at start of year (at cost) $14,832,720
North Para - carrying amount at start of year (at valuation) $15,320,793
Add: Revaluation - Note 1(h) $0 $488,073
Less: Accumulated Depreciation - Note 1(i) ($191,510) $0

Carrying amount at the end of year at revaluation $15,129,283 $15,320,793

Land
Land and Easements - at valuation $326,364 $611,364
Less: land sold at valuation $0 ($285,000)
Land - at valuation - Note 1(g) $326,364 $326,364

Carrying amount at the end of year at valuation $326,364 $326,364

Total infrastructure and Land $15,455,647 $15,647,157

There are no Non Current Liabilities  
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5 Contractual Services
Contractual Services involve payments or liabilities for the external provision of services and include (net 
of GST): 
 

Consultants Operations

Fred Pedler & Associates 42,900$                76,950$                
Dean Gollan 15,533$                
Allsurv Engineering Services Pty Ltd 2,181$                   
Australian Water Environments 5,626$                   
Cutloose Pty Ltd 520$                      
Enviro Group Pty Ltd 2,500$                   2,500$                   
Maloney Field Services -$                       
The Lighthouse Public Relations Pty Ltd 2,606$                   
North East Construction Pty Ltd -$                       
UHY Haines Norton Ltd 1,950$                   1,300$                   
SA Water

62,883$                91,683$                

Contractors, Consultants Infrastructure

Torrens Building and Civil Pty Ltd 26,300$                
Alexander Symonds Pty Ltd 6,815$                   
SA Water 3,915,594$           

3,915,594$           33,115$                

Totals 3,978,477$           124,798$              

 
 
 
 
6 Comparison of Budget and Actual Results (excluding depreciation)

Budget Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $ $

Revenue
Administration 116,256$                 107,334$                  98,480$                102,112$              
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation 3,100,528$              2,644,510$               573,470$              12,830$                
Maintenance 16,000$                   16,000$                    
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation Capital 309,356$              327,246$              
Total Revenue 3,232,784$              2,767,844$               981,306$              442,188$              

Expenditure
Administration 163,337 71,871 138,333$              75,246$                
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation 4,164,319 3,916,795 774,528$              70,955$                
Maintenance 16,000 5,809
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation Capital
Total Expenditure 4,343,656 3,994,475 912,861$              146,201$              

Surplus (Deficit) (1,110,872) (1,226,631) 68,445$                295,987$              

2012 2011
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7 Expenditure Commitment
 
(i) An agreement has been entered into with SA Water Corporation to undertake flood mitigation works to 
the South Para Reservoir dam wall and spillway in 2011-2012 for an estimated cost of $4,381,949 that 
includes a 10% contingency. 
 
(ii) An agreement has been entered into with Dean Gollan to provide Executive Officer and Supervision of 
Consultants services to 31 December 2013. 
 
(iii) The State Government has approved funding for the Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme totalling 
$8,166,612 of which $7,998,726 has been paid to the Authority. 
 
(iv) The Commonwealth Government has approved funding for the Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme 
under the Regional Flood Mitigation Program totalling $8,713,371 of which $7,998,726 has been paid to 
the Authority. 
 
 
 
8 Reconciliation Statement of Cash Flows
 

8.1 Reconcile to operating activities
Net deficit from operations (1,418,139)
Adjust for non cash Items

Depreciation 191,510
Increase in Accrued Grant Income (251,762)
Increase in Debtors - GST (86,115)
Increase in Accrued SMA Grant Income (174,752)
Reduction in Accounts Payable (6,681)
Increase in Accrued Expense - SA Water 188,660

Net cash used in operating activities (1,557,279)

8.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Balance at bank 7,926
Balance at LGFA 22,610

Total cash and cash equivalents 30,536  
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Assets
 $         544,222 
 $    15,129,283 

Land  $         326,364 
 $    15,999,869 

 $         192,657 
Net Equity  $    15,807,212 

Allocation of Councils Interest in Net Assets

Accumulated 
Subscriptions for 
Operations to 30 

June 2012

Accumulated 
Subscriptions for 

Maintenance to 30 
June 2012

Accumulated 
Subscriptions for 
Scheme Works to 

30 June 2012

All Subscriptions 
to 30 June 2012

Percentage of 
Contributions to 

the Total

Council's 
Interests in Net 

Assets

 $            43,666  $                 623  $              70,988 115,277$        2.62% 414,922$
 $            43,666  $              3,121  $            354,951 401,738$        9.15% 1,445,994$
 $            43,666  $              6,242  $            709,892 759,800$        17.30% 2,734,782$
 $            43,666  $              3,121  $            354,951 401,738$        9.15% 1,445,994$
 $            43,666  $            10,410  $         1,183,146 1,237,222$     28.17% 4,453,189$
 $            43,666  $            12,487  $         1,419,763 1,475,916$     33.61% 5,312,331$

261,996$        36,004$          4,093,691$       4,391,691$     100.00% 15,807,212$

Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Schedule of Constituent Council's Interests in Net Assets as at 30th June 2012

Prepared to meet the requirements of Clause 15.5 of the Charter

This Schedule has been prepared on the basis that the Authority was 'wound up' on 30th June 2012. The value of infrastructure and 
land as stated in the Audited Financial Statements at 30th June have been included. Grants and contributions from the Commonwealth 
Government, State Government and the Northern Adelaide Barossa Catchment Water Management Board that have contributed to 
these costs have not been deducted.

Calculation of Net Equity

Investments / Debtors

For the purposes of this Clause all subscriptions by Constituent Councils have been included.  

Infrastructure

"The ‘Schedule of Constituent Councils’ Interests in Net Assets’ will reflect the proportionate contribution each Constituent Council has 
made to the growth of the net assets of the Authority having regard to the proportionate contribution to subscriptions. The Schedule 
when updated by the Board at the end of each financial year will reflect the proportionate contribution of each Constituent Council 
since the commencement of the Authority and once accepted by each Constituent Council will be evidence of the agreed proportion of 
a Constituent Council’s interests in the net assets as at 30 June in that year."

Schedule of Constituent Councils’ Interests in Net Assets’ as at the 30th June 2012 adopted by the Board in accordance with Clause 
15.5 of the Charter on 16 August 2012.

Town of Gawler

District Council of Mallala
City of Playford

Less Liabilities
Accounts Payable / Creditors

Constituent Councils

Adelaide Hills Council
The Barossa Council

Light Regional Council
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GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN 
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

Constituent Councils Adelaide Hills Council 
The Barossa Council 
Town of Gawler 
Light Regional Council 
District Council of Mallala 
City of Playford 

ACHIEVEMENTS AGAINST THE BUSINESS PLAN 2011 – 2014
GRFMA BUSINESS PLAN 

 
Adopted  3rd April 2003 
Amended  19th February 2004 
Amended  15th June 2006 
Amended  19th June 2008 
Amended  25th June 2009 
Amended 17th June 2010 
Amended  16th June 2011 

 
For the Period July 2011 to June 2012 

Address: 3/58 Charles Street, Unley, South Australia  5061 
Mobile: 040 778 2255 
Email: deangollan@hotmail.com 
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Achievements Against the Business Plan 2011 – 2014 for the period July 2011 to June 2012 

For the previous achievements see the Annual Reports for the years ending June 2003 to 2011. 
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Evaluation of Performance Against the Business Plan 

This Statement of Achievements Against the Business Plan will form part of the Key Outcomes Summary to Councils following the meetings at which it is tabled. The 
Statement will be prepared for the October, February, and June Board Meetings. The June report will form part of the GRFMA Annual Report 2011 - 2012. 

Part A: Funding 

Performance Targets: Timings: To be measured By: Actual Achievements

Secure Additional Project Funding June 2009 All Councils, stakeholders 
and Governments agree to 
contribute to the project in 
accordance with the Plan 

� Scheme Total now $21,697,377 grants total $16,879,982

Grant Claims At all times Lodge claims monthly for the 
payment of Commonwealth 
and State Government 
Grants. 

� Claims lodged at the end of the month

Maintain positive Cash Flow At all times Positive bank account 
balances at all times. 

� Positive cash flow maintained

Part B: Proposed Flood Mitigation Scheme Works 

 

South Para Works

The South Para Reservoir is under the control and management of SA Water Corporation who have agreed to undertake the required modifications to the South 
Para Reservoir to provide the required level of flood mitigation capacity as a cost to the Scheme. 

Dam safety review and design proposal to modify the dam wall and spillway completed September 2005 

Detailed hydrology study of the catchment using the very latest methodologies let to Department of Transport, Energy and Infrastructure completed 
March 2007.

Performance Targets: Timings: To be measured By: Actual Achievements

Detailed design of works December 2010 Completion of detailed 
design and tender 
documents 

� July 2011 Final approvals granted

Construction of the works June 2012 Completion of construction � Practical completion was reached on 25 June 2012
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Achievements Against the Business Plan 2011 – 2014 for the period July 2011 to June 2012 

For the previous achievements see the Annual Reports for the years ending June 2003 to 2011. 
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Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme – Mark Two

The Gawler River Floodplain Mapping study identified that post the construction of the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam and 
modifications to the South Para Reservoir there will remain 3,750 properties at risk of flooding in a 1 in 100 year flood. 

The Gawler River Floodplain Mapping Study Part Two December 2008 undertook a preliminary assessment of possible local area levees that may 
be able to be developed to reduce the number of properties at risk. Levees at Gawler, Angle Vale and Two Wells were identified. Further mapping 
will be required to identify levee locations to protect Virginia. 

The Gawler River Floodplain Mapping Study Addendum in 2009 identified that due to the annual flood damage losses the cost of developing 
additional flood mitigation storage on the North Para River could possibly meet the required cost benefit test to gain capital funding. 

It is acknowledged that urban development is being planned in and adjacent to these towns where flood protection is proposed by implementing 
parts of these levees. It is in the regions interests that the region wide level of flood protection be raised to the 1 in 100 year standard by a consistent 
strategy that has been demonstrated as the most cost effective to implement. 

The policy and legal framework around maintenance of rivers and creeks that are identified as flood ways requires clearer definition to be pursued 
through the LGA. 

The Department for Transport Energy and Infrastructure has been requested to undertake a preliminary assessment of the North Para River to 
identify if there are opportunities to establish the required additional flood mitigation storage. This is seen as a critical first step in the development of 
a regional strategy. 

This strategy has not been funded following the revision of the funding for the South Para Reservoir project.
 
Part B: Maintenance of the Scheme 

Performance Targets: Timings: To be measured By: Actual Achievements

Six monthly inspection June and December Completion of Inspection 
Report 

� Sep 2011 – Dam Inspector inspection

Inspection following initial filling of 
the Dam 

Within one month of 
event 

Completion of Inspection 
Report 

� Sep 2010 – Flood event ARI 7 dam water rose to 70m. Dam 
operates as designed. No property damage reported. Dried 
reed debris accumulated behind the dam wall.

� Dec 2012 – Flood event > ARI 10 dam water rose to 72.5m 
HLOP operated. Dam operated as designed. No property
damage reported. Dried reed debris accumulated behind the
dam wall.
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Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Achievements Against the Business Plan 2011 – 2014 for the period July 2011 to June 2012 

For the previous achievements see the Annual Reports for the years ending June 2003 to 2011. 
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Part C: Operation of the Regional Subsidiary 

Performance Targets: Timings: To be measured By: Actual Achievements

Reports to Stakeholders Twice yearly The publication and distribution of a Fact 
Sheet to all stakeholders and affected 
landowners. 

 Bi-Monthly Key Outcomes Summary to be published 
following each Board Meeting to include a 
summary of the progress of the 
development of the Scheme.  

� June 2011 - Business Plan 2012 – 2014 adopted
� April 2012 - Achievements against the Business 

Plan 2011 – 2014 completed

Maintain effective Regional 
Subsidiary 

December The performance of the Executive Officer 
be reviewed annually 

� Next review due December 2012

 August The appointment of Auditor, Bank 
Operators, levels of insurance, appropriate 
registrations, delegations and policies be 
reviewed annually. 

� April 2012 – Auditor re-appointed up to 30 June 
2014

Review of the Business 
Plan 

By 31st March  Review the Business Plan prior to preparing 
the Budget 
Forward to the Councils 

� April 2012 – Approved for consultation

Annual Budget By 31st March, June, 
October, December, 
April 

Adopt for consultation forward to Councils 
Adopt Budget – copy to Councils in 5 days 
Conduct Budget Reviews 

� April 2012 – Approved for consultation
� June 2012 – Budget 2012 – 2013 Adopted

Subscriptions June 
December 

Send half year subscriptions to Council 
Send half year subscriptions to Council  

� All subscriptions paid for the year

Report to Constituent 
Councils 

Following each Board 
meeting 
By 30th September 

The receipt of the following reports by 
Councils: 
� Board Meeting Key Outcome 

Summary 
� Annual Report including Annual 

Financial Statements  

� Key Outcomes Summary distributed following 
each meeting 

� Annual Reports forwarded electronically to 
Councils 5th September 2011
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Annual Report 2011-12 
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District Council of Mallala 

2a Wasleys Road 
Mallala SA  5502 
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